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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”), the Group
was principally engaged in three businesses: (i) pharmaceutical products
business; (i) finance leasing business; (iii) genetic testing and molecular
diagnostic services. The major business are stated as below:

Pharmaceutical Products Business

Since the acquisition of Fujian Yongchun Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (1&
2ok & 8% AR A Al (“Fujian Yongchun?) and Fujian Zhixin Medicine Co.,
Limited* (1& & = {5 & % 5 R 2 7)) (“Fujian Zhixin”) in 2019, the Company
continued to develop its core business, pharmaceutical products business.

Fujian Yongchun is located in Yongchun County, Quanzhou City, Fujian
Province. Its plants occupies a site area of 32,330 square metres with a gross
floor area of approximately 8,311.58 square metres, in which the GMP
workshop has an area of 3,581 square metres. Fujian Yongchun owns 5 drug
registration series (%% g #t /£ X 5%) in the PRC and produces 5 types of oral
medicine, including Yangpi San (% £ &%), Sangi panax notoginseng capsules
(= + B %) and phentolamine mesylate tablets (FF #& Bt B} 3 7 B3 F). It
becomes the core base for pharmaceutical production of the Group.

The Group will continue to increase its market share by promoting the core
products and other products of Fujian Yongchun. To achieve this goal, the
Group has been adjusting its market position from time to time. In particular,
the Group plans to enhance its sales and promotion strategies so as to
strengthen its market penetration. The Group will continue to expand its sales
team to further explore the traditional medicine market by introducing sales via
drugstore chains and other channels. The Group will also fully utilize its existing
sales team to increase its sales through distributors.

Fujian Zhixin possesses the Medical Operations Permit (Wholesale), Medical
Operation Quality Management System Certifications (GSP) and Food
Operations Permit. The Group acts as a sales agent nationwide for the herbal
medical materials, Chinese herbal medicine, Chinese patent medicine, chemical
drug preparations, antibiotic preparations, biochemical pharmaceuticals,
biological products, healthcare products and food products. Not only the
Group can sell its pharmaceutical products through the sales network of Fujian
Zhixin, but can also act as a sales agent to sell pharmaceutical and healthcare
products for other pharmaceutical companies.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue derived from pharmaceutical

products business increased by approximately 19.68% to approximately
RMB53.82 million (2020: approximately RMB44.97 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Leasing Business

Union Development Finance Lease (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (B4 25 & &
EHE (Y1) BRA R )and Zhonghuixin Finance Lease (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*
(F IE & gt & 7 E0F Y1)F B 2 al), both being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, have been engaging in finance leasing business
since 2017 and 2021 respectively. The revenue derived from finance leasing
business of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB9.30
million (2020: RMB6.61 million), representing an increase of approximately
40.82% as compared to the year 2020.

The Company will continue to endeavour to expand its finance leasing services
of medical devices and rehabilitation equipment which is complimentary to the
Group’s existing pharmaceutical products business.

The Group has contracted several new leasing agreements in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB225.5 million with interest rates ranging from 4.75%-—
7.0% per annum during the Reporting Period. The Company will continue to
further diversify its finance leasing business with a cautious approach in order
to maximise the long term interests of the shareholders.

Genetic Testing and Molecular Diagnostic Services

The Group has acquired the equity interests in Zentrogene Bioscience
Laboratory Limited (“Zentrogene”) in 2019 which primarily engages in the
provision of genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services. Zentrogene
operates a laboratory with the relevant license in Hong Kong, providing services
such as non-invasive prenatal diagnosis (NIPD), tumor genetic screening, DNA
testing and paternity testing. Genetic testing is a prerequisite for precision
medicine.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue generated from genetic testing and
molecular diagnostic services amounted to approximately RMB4.49 million
(2020: RMB5.84 million), representing a decrease of 23.12%. The decrease
was mainly due to the termination of the cooperation in 2020 with the business
partners in Shenzhen during the Reporting Period as a result of the prolonged
travel restrictions between Hong Kong and Mainland China caused by the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.

Other General Trading Business

The Group historically operates other general trading business, including the
trading of pharmaceutical related apparatus and products such as masks and
oxygen machine, etc.. However, due to the relatively thin profit margin and the
increasing inventory risk associated with the stocking of trading commodities
due to uncertainty in worldwide delivery logistics and volatility in commodity
prices, the Company has decided to cease its general trading business in
2021. Accordingly, during the Reporting Period, other general trading business
recorded nil revenue (2020: approximately RMB64.00 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B G wmEE D AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Reporting Period, the Group has a total revenue of approximately
RMB67.61 million, representing a decrease of approximately 44.31% as
compared to approximately RMB121.40 million in 2020, and the gross profit
margin was approximately 59.99% (2020: gross profit margin approximately
25.47%). The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB9.03 million (2020: approximately RMB6.42 million).

The decrease in the total revenue was primarily due to the cessation of the
other general trading business during the Reporting Period. The increase in the
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Reporting Period as
compared to that of 2020 was primarily due to the fact that the Group has
been able to increase its sales of pharmaceutical products manufactured by
Yongchun with high margin during the Reporting Period. The basic and diluted
earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.29 cents (2020: basic and diluted
earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.21 cents).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB16.30 million (2020: approximately RMB2.63 million) and
most cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars.

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio
As at 31 December 2021, the total issued shares of the Company was
3,067,222,500 shares.

As at 31 December 2021, the share capital and equity attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately RMB28.60 million and approximately
RMB199.07 million respectively (2020: approximately RMB28.60 million and
approximately RMB188.90 million respectively).

The Group had reviewed the capital structure by gearing ratio. The gearing
ratio represents the total debt, which includes trade and other payables of the
Group, divided by total equity of the Group. The gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 36.22% as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
40.71%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

For the Reporting Period, the Group conducted most of its business
transactions in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have
any foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial
derivatives for hedging purpose. Therefore, the Group was not exposed to any
material interest and exchange risks during the Reporting Period. The
management, however, will monitor foreign exchange risks and consider
hedging foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND CHARGES ON
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any other significant capital
commitment (2020: nil).

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other significant
contingent liabilities as at the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no land use rights and property, plant and
equipment (2020: nil) which had been pledged as security for the borrowings of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENTS

There was no significant acquisition and disposal of investments held during
the Reporting Period.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The Company did not have any equity fund raising activity during the Reporting
Period.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

For the Reporting Period, the Group employed approximately 81 employees
(2020: 68 employees) with total staff cost of approximately RMB9.99 million
(2020: approximately RMB9.34 million) from continuing operations. The Group
determined staff remuneration with reference to the prevailing market salary
scales, individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages
including salaries, performance bonuses and entitlements to share options
which are reviewed on a regular basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB WD AT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no significant
capital expenditure of the Group for property, plant and equipment.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance practice, such that the interests of our shareholders, customers,
employees as well as the long term development of the Company can be
safeguarded.

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board and three
board committees under the Board, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board
stipulates the terms of reference of all board committees and specifies therein
clearly the powers and responsibilities of the board committees.

The Company has complied with the provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code effective on or before 31 December 2021 (“CG Code”) in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year ended 31 December 2021, except for deviation from provision
A.2.1, A6.7, E-1.2 and A.5.1, and Rule 3.10, 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the
Listing Rules as further elaborated below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the Company’s own code for securities transactions by its
Directors. In addition, the Company has made specific enquiries with all
Directors and all Directors confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2021, they had fully complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consisted of nine members, with five
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Chenggqing, Mr. Gao Borui, Mr. Yuan
Chaoyang, Professor Zhang Rongging and Mr. She Hao, one non-executive
director, namely Mr. Xiu Yuan and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Professor Zhu Yi Zhun, Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex and Mr. Zhang
Ruigen. All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics and
integrity. The biographical details of each Director are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report. There is no relationship
among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall development
and management of the Group with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the overall strategies and policies of the Group, approval of
annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance
and oversight of the works of management.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and report to them at general
meetings. The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall strategy
and to monitor the operation as well as the financial performance of the
Company. The Chairman focuses on the Company’s strategy and is
responsible for chairing and managing the efficient operation of the Board and
ensuring that all key issues are considered by the Board in a timely manner.
Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
whenever they consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and
accompanying Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are
dispatched in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the meeting.
Directors have to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered at Board meetings and abstain
from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board meetings are circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation. The
Board meets at least 4 times a year, at approximately quarterly intervals, to
review the financial performance and results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Company that require the resolution of
the Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
independent non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if
they are unable to attend the meeting in person.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”). All Directors have access to Board papers and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information in a timely manner. This
enables the Board to make informed decision on matters placed before it.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the year under review,
the Board formulated the terms of reference on the corporate governance
duties and performed corporate governance duties in accordance with the
terms of reference. The Board mainly performed the following corporate
governance duties during the year under review:

o reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made recommendations;

o reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices to ensure
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

o developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees; and

o reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD ATTENDANCE

Corporate Governance Report

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had convened 4 Board
meetings and did not hold any general meeting.

Attendance records of the Directors are as follows:

SHEABE

EEgHER
REBE-F_—H+-A=1t—HLFE"
EFEECRT4REFTETHERUBBITEM
BRAE -

BEEZHFEREMT

Number of
attendance of
general meetings

Number of
attendance of
Board meetings

Directors EESER BEAE

= R E R E

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Chengaing (Chairman) BRAK BB T4 (/%) 3/4 0/0
Note (1) P#E (1)

Professor Zhang Rongaing REEHIR 4/4 0/0
Note (1) i ZE (1)

Mr. She Hao LEEE 4/4 0/0
Note (1) B #E (1)

Mr. Gao Borui SiREELE 4/4 0/0
Note (1) B#E (1)

Mr. Yuan Chaoyang REABRE 3/4 0/0
Note (1) Bi#E (1)

Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Xiu Yuan BRELE 2/4 0/0
Note (1) Bi#E (1)

Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Professor Zhu Yi Zhun RIKEHIF 4/4 0/0
Note (1) B#E (1)

Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex (appointed with BBt E 4/4 0/0

effect from 3 February 2021) (BB A=ZAREZE) Note (1) Fff3 (1)
Mr. Zhang Ruigen (appointed with RImB 4 3/3 0/0
effect from 25 June 2021) (B-E-_—EXA-THAEEERMT) Note (1) B &E (1)
Note: Pt EE :
1. No general meeting was held during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 1. RZZE=-Z—F—A—HBE-Z=-—F+=A
2021. =t+—HHE  SERTEARRAS -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In respect of the code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as Code
Provision C.2.1 under the new Corporate Governance Code that came into
effect on 1 January 2022) of the CG Code, the roles of chairman (the
“Chairman”) and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) of the Company shall be
separated and shall not be performed by the same individual. The Board
considered that vesting the roles of Chairman and the CEQO in the same person
facilitates the execution of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes
effectiveness of its operations. In November 2021, Mr. She Hao was appointed
as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company. On the other hand, there
are three independent non-executive Directors in the Board, all of them are
independent from the Company and the Board believes that there is a sufficient
check and balance in the Board. Therefore, the Board considers the Company
has provided sufficient protection to its interests and the interests of its
shareholders. The Board shall review the structure from time to time and shall
consider the appropriate adjustment should suitable circumstances arise.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence of the executive
directors. During the Reporting Period, Mr. Chen Chengqing (“Mr. Chen”), the
chairman of the Company had held a meeting with the non-executive Directors
of the Company without presence of the executive Directors. The Company
has complied with code provision A.2.7. Mr. Chen has also effective
communication with the non-executive Directors from time to time.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
All independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director did not
attend any general meetings as the Company had not convened any general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting and should invite the chairman of the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend the annual general meeting. In their
absence, he should invite another member of the committee(s) or failing this,
his duly appointed delegate, to attend. All Directors have not attended any
general meetings during the year under review as the Company had not
convened any annual general meeting during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited e Annual Report 2021

EERITRAR

RIBEEEATRTAGXEA21E(EE
HEEAR B —F— - BRERNIN
EEERTRIETHTRMEXFEC2.11)
ARABER(EFEDETHRAE(1TTHRAER])
MACEAMRD - WAEH— ARBHRE -
§$Em% HE—ALTEEZERTHR

C BMARRRITERRE - &AL
E%%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁo%:%:*¢+*ﬂ'
RELELBZERRRRBIITHRAER -
THEBEEEEE= %ﬁi#ﬁﬁé%
FBIYRART §$QHE§$Q¢T
RS - Hit - %$@%%$ AER
HiEm R AP ERRHENARE - EF T
MTH$Tﬁ% I Iﬂﬁ“ BERTEE
BERE -

TEERTUZTFAGEXEA2THRRE - £
FEREVEFEIERNTES (BEBMIERIT
BER)RTRSEVTESHENSZ - ]
EHIN  AABEFRARE L E (TFREE D)
W EARNN B FEMITE BRITEMR BT
BEHENEZ - ARARIEETTAEX
A27 BREETNIAEFEIFNITERHEITAER
Y5

FHITES

EERTZTARXEALTIRRE - 958
VHRRTEERHEMIERTEETRHERR
RE HRERBERERAEZ TR REBE—
E-—F+-A=+—-RALFE BHRER
ATEAREMRERE  RE2EBIIEHR
TEENMFRTETUELEFEEFARRAS -

TRIGXEEI2GRTE EFRTFELE
BRBFAE UBFEZRES FHZR
g REZEGREMEMZES(INER)
mIﬁﬁFk$ﬁ¢K§°%ﬁ@§§§
FEARELFE BEFSIRERFS—
(HMZBERBERELE WE@?%EWH
RIHE - ARARRARRNBE_ZT - —F+=
A=+ —HLEFEITERREMRRAFA

2REBFENQESE L &L F AR
RAR® o



Corporate Governance Report

From 1 January 2021 to 2 February 2021, the Company only had one
independent non-executive Director and one member in the Audit Committee.
Hence, the Company failed to meet the requirements of having: (a) at least
three independent non-executive directors on the Board under Rule 3.10(1) of
the Listing Rules; (b) independent non-executive directors who represent at
least one-third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (c) the audit
committee of the Company comprising only non-executive directors with a
minimum of three members under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; (d) at least
one of the independent non-executive directors who have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; (e) the
remuneration committee of the Company comprising a majority of independent
non-executive directors and chaired by an independent non-executive director
under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules; and (f) the nomination committee of the
Company comprising a majority of independent non-executive directors under
code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code (which has become mandatory
requirements under Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules after 1 January 2022).

Upon the appointments of Mr. Khor Khie Liem, Alex (“Mr. Khor”) and Mr. Zhang
Ruigen (“Mr. Zhang”) on 3 February 2021 and 25 June 2021 respectively, (i) the
Board has three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Zhu
Yi Zhun (“Professor Zhu”), Mr. Khor and Mr. Zhang which is in compliance with
Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (i) the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board which is in compliance with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules; (iii) the Audit Committee comprising three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Khor as chairman of the Audit Committee,
Professor Zhu and Mr. Zhang and is in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules; (iv) the Audit Committee has at least one of the independent non-
executive directors who must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; (v) the Remuneration Committee comprised two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Chengging (“Mr. Chen”) and Professor
Zhang Rongging (“Professor Zhang”), and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Khor as chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
Professor Zhu and Mr. Zhang and is in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules; and (vi) the Nomination Committee Comprised two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen as chairman of the Nomination Committee and Professor
Zhang, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhu,
Mr. Khor and Mr. Zhang and is in compliance with code provision A.5.1 of the
CG Code.
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From 25 June 2021 onwards, the composition of the Board and the Audit
Committee are in compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1), Rule
3.10A, Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, and the composition of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are in
compliance with Rule 3.25 and code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules respectively.

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term between one and two years. The appointment contracts
will be renewed every year and they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election by shareholders in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. The responsibilities of the non-executive Directors include, without
limitation: regular attendance at meetings of the Board and of board
committees of which they are members; provision of independent opinions at
meetings of the Board and other board committees; resolution of or taking the
lead where there is potential conflict of interests; service on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company; and scrutinizing and monitoring the performance of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
in August 2013 and such Board Diversity Policy states the method by which
the board diversity can be reached.

To the knowledge of the Company, the fact that the Board has become
gradually more and more diversified has helped the Company achieved its
strategic objectives and has provided support for the Company’s sustainable
development.

The Company aims at achieving board diversity by taking into consideration of
various factors including age, gender, culture and educational background,
race, professional experience, knowledge and other qualifications of the
members of the Board. When the Company determines the best combination
for the members of the Board, it will, from time to time, take into consideration
of its own business model and specific needs.

The Nomination Committee has designed measurable goals according to four
major aspects (namely, age, professional qualification, term of service and
independence) for the purposes of implementing the Board Diversity Policy and
considered that it has tried its best endeavour to achieve such goals during the
year under review. The relevant goals will be reviewed from time to time so as
to ensure its appropriateness and its progress for achieving such goals. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time
(if appropriate) to ensure that such policy continues to be effective.

The Company will further diversify the Board by appointing at least one Director

of different gender in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules in
due course.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code stipulates that Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remain informed and relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development activities by way of attending trainings and/or reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. A summary of professional trainings received by the Directors
for the Reporting Period according to the records provided by the Directors is
as follows:

SHEABE

S
EERTATRAGRXEACSKRTE  EF
E2RBSEILER  BETTRAMNBER
mEE NEREEETEABEEEMKIA
PBMER THEESEHTR -

SRERESEE B EE R R
ARREBHEERBELBEFWNEA
SESEFERR REEEMEHTE
EENHEPRIEERRIOHENT

Attending seminar(s)
programme(s)/
conference(s) and/or
reading materials
relevant to

the business or
directors’ duties

HEMRSERER
BEK SEEHR
(KR EERG
BEAMNER
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Chengging (Chairman) PRAK B LA (/) 4
Professor Zhang Rongging REEBEHIR v
Mr. She Hao RESLE v/
Mr. Gao Borui SiamEE v
Mr. Yuan Chaoyang REAGRE v/
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Xiu Yuan BREE v
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Professor Zhu Yi Zhun KIKZHIR v
Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex (appointed with FTEABE ST A
effect from 3 February 2021) (BZZE=—F-_R=RAEEZET) v
Mr. Zhang Ruigen (appointed with RIBIRSCAE
effect from 25 June 2021) (BZZ=—F X "AZThHAREZRT) v/

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the distribution shall achieve continuity,
stability and sustainability. The recommendation of the payment of any dividend
is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board and the Board shall take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable return in
investment of the investors and the shareholders in order to provide incentive
to them to continue to support the Group in their long-term development, the
financial conditions and business plan of the Group, and the market sentiment
and circumstances. The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

The Company has maintained and renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The insurance covers them against costs,
charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are delegated
to the three Board committees, each of which operates under its defined terms
of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the Audit
Committee and their attendance records for the year ended 31 December
2021 were as follows:

%%&%@%“EE

AEEHRBTERBE-_T_—F+_H
_+ BLFEARREREERSNER
EnEERREBEEERER - FARRS
WEARCEEDMELNKA  BR - H
X KREME -

ExZEg
ETERREREENFGTIFERET=
BEEZEE ZZBEENREEREZB
TEEHEEE -

EREES
ARREREBEETRAKIEZZEGLE
EREEEBESE BE_T_—F1+_H
=St HLEFE ERZEGZAKEES
BV E RS T

Number of
Directors attendance of
= R
Independent non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex (Chairman) FFEAmE ST A (F )

(appointed with effect from 3 February 2021) (BZZE=_—F-_A=HEEZMF) 2/2
Professor Zhu Yi Zhun RIKFZHIX 2/2
Mr. Zhang Ruigen @E%’fﬁﬁ'ﬁi

(appointed with effect from 25 June 2021) (B —F XA THAREZT) 2/2

Each member can bring to the committee his valuable experience in reviewing
financial statements and evaluating significant internal control and financial
issues of the Company as each of them possesses management experience in
the accounting profession or commercial sectors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting system, financial statements and internal
control procedures. The Audit Committee also monitors the appointment of the
Company’s external independent auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection on the website of the Company at
www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year under
review, two meetings were held and the Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee
together with the management of the Company also reviewed the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group and discussed, among other
things, the risk management and internal control systems and the financial
reporting matters of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee and their attendance records for the year ended 31
December 2021 were as follows:

TRERBME

FHEES
ARRERELETRAKIFHEESUE
EEEEBEEE BE—T -+
=t—BLFE FHEESZEREES
B E RS AT

Number of
Directors attendance of
Bx H R B
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Chengaing BRAKEE S 4 11
Professor Zhang Rongaing R BEHIR 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex (Chairman) FTEABE T A (E/E)

(appointed with effect from 3 February 2021) (BZZE=—F-_A=HEEZMF) 1/1
Professor Zhu Yi Zhun RAKFZHIR 11
Mr. Zhang Ruigen SRIGARSE A

(appointed with effect from 25 June 2021) (B2 —F AT hARBEZF) 11

The Board has delegated the authority to the Remuneration Committee to
review and recommend to the Board the compensation scheme of the
Directors as well as that of the senior management staff.

The main function of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board to
oversee the Company’s remuneration packages, bonus and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management and establish a
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The Board
shall provide sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to enable it
to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has conducted
one meeting. The Remuneration Committee assisted the Board in reviewing
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of newly
appointed independent non-executive Directors. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available for inspection on the website of the
Company at www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.

ExerRTHNREendEERRRER
BTrmMtEl ksl mES SR TE

FHEE T ERERBHEEIERALR
AXNEEREREEEZHES B2
NEMHEANRI L -ERBRAENEF -
NHIEEBZENE 2 HEK - EFGAMF
HEEgRHARER  ASHERBETH

BE -

REBETE FHEE8eCBH—KEH-
SN E TR ES SR ZEB L IENTT
EEVHEWEHEZARBLRAESSREE
Fo MR ES T HERE A RAQ R AL
www.1889hk.com K B 32 AT A8 UL Z 3 ©

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK

19



20

Corporate Governance Report
Y172 ._q \A*ﬁi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee with written terms of
reference. The composition of the Nomination Committee and their attendance
records for the year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:

REZES
RRAREKRIIREE B G E M T HLBE
HE -BE_E-_—F+-_A=+—HIF
B RBEZEEEZEKRBEENLFELEN
T

Number of

Directors attendance of
2x HE R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Chengajing (Chairman) FRAKE o (/) 1
Professor Zhang Rongging SRR BEHIR 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Professor Zhu Yi Zhun RARFZHIR 11
Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex FTEABE A

(appointed with effect from 3 February 2021) (BA-BE-—F_-_A=HHEEZT) 11
Mr. Zhang Ruigen ?E%’fﬁf‘ﬁi

(appointed with effect from 25 June 2021) (B =—F XA THAREZMT) 11

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals who are suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, and to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. Having regard to the
independence and quality of nominees, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and
transparent. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company, and reviewing the objectives set for
implementing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as well as the
composition and diversity of the Board. The Board shall provide sufficient
resources to the Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years. The retiring Directors are
eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has conducted one
meeting in which the members of Nomination Committee performed appraisal
of newly appointed independent non-executive Directors, recommended the
Board to appoint the same as Directors and as members of the Board
committees and reviewed the independence of all of the independent non-
executive Directors. During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
also monitored the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection on the
website of the Company at www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from Board
members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members. The factors which would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate of director
include, inter alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
Board member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate
to the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance matters of the
Company. The Board has established its terms of reference, pursuant to which
the duties of the Board include, inter alia, (i) to develop, review and implement
the policies and practices of corporate governance matters of the Company; (ii)
to review, monitor and implement the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (i) to review, monitor
and implement the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (iv) to develop, review, monitor
and implement the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to Directors and employees; and (v) to review and ensure compliance with the
CG Code by the Company and proper and accurate disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the senior management
of the Company (including executive Directors), whose biographies are set out
on pages 25 to 28 of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out below:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, for their works in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 was as follows:

Audit services FEIZARTE
Non-audit services IEEZ RIS
Total et

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges their responsibility for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Board acknowledges their
responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Board
has adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable; and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which set out
the financial position of the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, has set out their
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out on pages 52 to
55 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal control
and has ultimate responsibilities for overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. The Board is also committed to
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least annually.
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The Group established the risk management and internal control systems with
aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in decision making
process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code,
the Board has engaged an independent professional firm as an outsourced
internal auditor to facilitate the Group’s internal audit function in order for the
Group to be equipped with adequate resources in conducting reviews as
required by the Stock Exchange. The independent professional internal auditor
firm also assisted the Audit Committee and the Board in performing reviews on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group has conducted an annual risk assessment which identified
respective strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks
for each of the major business operations of the Group. Risk factors were
analyzed and consolidated at the Group level. Based on the risk assessment
results following a risk based methodology audit approach, an internal audit
plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into respective annual
internal audit projects and manage the risks accordingly.

An annual review was performed by the independent professional internal
auditor firm according to the internal audit plan with a view to assisting the
Audit Committee and the Board to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2021. The review also covered the compliance of code provisions as set out in
the CG Code and all material internal controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls at entity and operational levels. The Company has
taken further steps to enhance its risk management and internal control
systems according to some control weaknesses that were found during risk
assessment and examination of the internal control system and strengthened
the implementation of all the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has established procedures in handling and dissemination of
inside information in an accurate and secure manner to avoid possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group. Release of inside
information is subject to the approval of the Board. Unless duly authorized, all
staff members of the Company shall not communicate any inside information
to any external parties and shall not respond to any market speculation and
rumours. In addition, all external publications and presentation materials must
be reviewed by the management before release.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established and
maintained by the Group, and the work performed by the internal and external
auditors, the Audit Committee and the Board performed an annual review on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Audit Committee and the Board
are of the view that the Group has maintained effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2021, the company secretary of the Company was Ms. Li
Yuen Shan. She undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training
during the year under review in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that shareholders’ rights should be well respected and
protected. The Company endeavours to maintain good communications with
shareholders on its performance through interim reports, annual reports,
general meetings and public disclosure on the website of the Company
(www.1889hk.com) and the website of the Stock Exchange, so that they may
make an informed assessment for their investments and exercise their rights as
shareholders. The Company also encourages shareholders’ participation
through general meetings or other means. Specific enquiries and suggestions
by shareholders can be submitted in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Unit 5, 7/F., Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company has reviewed its communication policy and considered that it is
effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at general meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting or proposal to be
put forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 5, 7/F., Nanyang Plaza, 57
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The requisitionists must
state in their request(s) the objects of the extraordinary general meeting to be
convened, and such request must be signed by all the requisitionists. Upon
receipt, the Company will verify the requisitionists’ particulars and if the request
is in order, the Company shall convene the extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with its articles of association.

CHANGE OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no change to the articles
of association of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chengqging, aged 44, has been an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board since 17 February 2017 and 16 June 2017 respectively.
Mr. Chen also serves as the chairman of Nomination Committee and a member
of Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is also a substantial
shareholder of the Company as at the date of this Report.

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur with more than 20 years of experience in business
management in the PRC. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of Guizhou
Changtong Cable Co., Ltd., the vice president of Pingba District Federation of
Industry and Commerce, the executive vice president of Anshun Zhejiang
Federation of Commerce, a member of Pingba District Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the vice president of
Guizhou Wenzhou Federation of Commerce. He was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 17 February 2017. He was interested or
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of approximately 27.37% of the total
number of issued shares in the Company as at 31 December 2021.

Professor Zhang Rongqing, aged 65, was redesignated from an independent
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 15 September 2017.
Professor Zhang was appointed as the independent non-executive Director on
16 June 2017. He also serves as a member of each the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated
from Suzhou Medical College in 1982 with a Bachelor degree of medicine and
received PhD in animal physiology and biochemistry from Nanjing Agricultural
University in 1993. Prof. Zhang has worked as professor in Tsinghua University
since 1998, and he has been the associate dean of School of life Science in
Tsinghua University. He is currently a director of the Institute of Biomedical
Research in Yangtze Delta Region of Tsinghua University in Zhejiang, deputy
director of the Teaching Guidance Committee of Biological Technology and
Bio-engineering of the Ministry of Education, the member of the 3rd and 4th
Advisory Group of Experts of the “973” Plan in the field of agriculture of the
Ministry of Science and Technology. Prof. Zhang has received many awards
and patents in science and technology. He is a well-known senior expert in the
field of marine biochemistry & molecular biology, marine natural drug & gene
engineering, and marine biological enzyme. Prof. Zhang has been an
independent director of Shenzhen Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002399), since
May 2014. He is also an independent director of Shandong Oriental Ocean Sci-
tech Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 002086), since April 2017.

Mr. Gao Borui, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
26 July 2019. Mr. Gao has extensive experience in business, finance and
accounting management. Since November 1998, Mr. Gao has consecutively
worked as the chief financial officer, the chief accountant and the assistant to the
chairman for the group companies of Xiuzheng Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited* (& I[F &% £ B DA R A7), a limited company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and principally engaged in developing,
manufacturing and sale of healthcare medication and related products, where he
was primarily responsible for finance, budget and funds management of the group.
Mr. Gao passed exams in accounting and graduated from Changchun Taxation
College* (R&EHEEPT) in Changchun City, Jilin Province, the PRC in April 2001.
Mr. Gao is a former member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Tonghua City, Jilin Province, the PRC. He is a former executive
member of the Chinese Pharmaceutical Accounting Association* (47 B8 28 Z & 21 £2
2) and the deputy secretary-general of the Accounting Association of Tonghua
City* (AL &5t 2).

Directors’ Biographies
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Mr. Yuan Chaoyang, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 26 July 2019. Mr. Yuan has extensive experience in business
investment, development and management. He has been the director of the
strategic planning department and project director of Delixi Group Co., Ltd.* (&
NFEEBAERAA), a limited company incorporated in the PRC and
responsible for the strategic planning and project management for the
company. From January 2017 to January 2018, Mr. Yuan served as the vice
president of project development in AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, an
investment holding company principally engaged in natural gas, construction
material and property-related business, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 260). Throughout the period, Mr. Yuan was
primarily responsible for project development, operational efficiency, quality
control and public relations management. Mr. Yuan graduated from the
People’s Armed Police Command College, Fuzhou branch* (i 242 M 51% £ [5x)
in Fujian Province, the PRC, in 1991, majoring in Japanese Language. Mr.
Yuan completed his studies of enterprise management courses in the Graduate
School, Shanghai University of Finance and Economics* (£ /&8 48 K2 A58 4
B) in July 2015 and obtained a certificate.

Mr. She Hao, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 11 November 2019. He also serves as the deputy Chief Executive Officer
of the Group. Mr. She holds a bachelor degree in bioengineering from Xiang
Tan University in 2005, and a master of business administration from University
of Electronic Science and Technology of China in 2013. He served as a
Research and Development Engineer and project supervisor in Shanghai
Biolaxy Medical Science and Technology Co. Ltd.* (F/8 & MDEERIF AR A
7)) (a pharmaceutical Research and Development institute, which was then
acquired by Anbo Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (AR AR A F
subsidiary of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd.* (/518 & &2 %%
(S E)R& 1D B R A 7)), responsible for matters relating to pharmaceutical
research and development from 2006 to 2011. He served as a quality manager
in Yifeng Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.* L KR&EBEBHBRHERAQA) (a
pharmaceutical circulation enterprise, a company whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: SH603939), responsible for
channel construction and government relations from the end of 2013 to the
end of 2014; He served as an investment manager, senior investment manager
and investment director in Fortune Link Investment Holdings Limited* (3R /7 [E &
LEER AR AR (a private equity investment institute), responsible for
investment matters in relation to pharmaceuticals and other greater health
projects from 2015 to 2017. He served as an investment manager in the
Investment and Development Department of Jiangmen Sugarcane Chemical
Factory (Group) Co., Ltd. (TPIHEL TR(ERE)RMD AR A A) (@ company
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
SZ000576), responsible for investment matters from September 2017 to
November 2019. Mr. She has extensive experience in pharmaceutical research
and development, circulation and pharmaceutical investment.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xiu Yuan, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect
from 5 November 2018. Mr. Xiu graduated from the Economic Management of
Xian Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army. He is currently
the general manager of XiuZheng Pharmaceutical Group Marketing Co., Ltd.
and a Member of the Young Entrepreneur Committee of the All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, a director of the 11th China Youth
Entrepreneurs Association, and the founding director of the China Youth
Entrepreneur “00 School” club.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhu Yi Zhun, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 December 2020. He also serves as a member of
each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Professor Zhu graduated from the School of
Medicine of the Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor degree in
Medicine in 1989, and then graduated from the School of Medicine of the
Heidelberg University with a doctor’s degree in Medicine in 1994. Professor
Zhu has been working on cardiovascular and neuropharmacology research for
nearly 20 years, and he is currently the first director and the chair professor of
the School of Pharmacy of the Macau University of Science and Technology,
and the Director of Zhuhai UM Science & Technology Research Institute.
Professor Zhu also had served as the Dean of the School of Pharmacy of
Fudan University for almost 10 years. He was also appointed as the Changjiang
Scholar Distinguished Professor of the Ministry of Education of the People’s
Republic of China, and awarded the National Outstanding Young Scholars, the
chief scientist of the National Major Scientific Research Program, and was the
person in charge of platform of new drug creation in a major project in respect
of national science and technology.

Professor Zhu was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Green International Holdings Limited, the shares of which were listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2700) for the period from 4 March 2016 to 30
June 2017. He was also appointed as an independent director of [ Fa{ R E
EEE BN AR AR (Shanxi C & Y Pharmaceutical Group Company, Limited®)
(stock code: 300254) for the period from June 2010 to July 2016 and an
independent director of JTPIH /L TR(SEE) R KB BR AR (Jiangmen
Sugarcane Chemical Factory (Group) Company, Limited*) (stock code. 000576)
from August 2015 to May 2018; the shares of both of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 3 February 2021. He also serves as the chairman of each
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Khor has accumulated more
than 20 years of working experience in the field of finance, capital market,
financial reporting and financial compliance services. Currently, Mr. Khor is a
founding director of KBS Capital Partners (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (‘KBS Capital”)
since July 2004, principally providing accounting, tax, company secretarial
compliance services, and corporate advisory services including IPO facilitation,
M&A services and project financing services. Since founding KBS Capital, Mr.
Khor has completed various IPO, M&A and project fund raising transactions for
its clients from Singapore, Malaysia and China. Mr. Khor is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2699).

Prior to this, Mr. Khor was the Group Financial Controller of CFM Holdings
Limited between 2002 to 2004, the Group Financial Controller of TEE
International Limited between 2000 to 2002, and the Regional Financial
Controller of Showpla Asia Limited between 1997 to 2000, all of these
companies are listed on Singapore Exchange.

Mr. Khor was admitted as an associate and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in 1999 and 2002 respectively. He
graduated from his studies in Master of Business Administration from University
of Leicester, UK in 2004. Currently, he is a Chartered Accountant of both of the
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants and Malaysian Institute of
Accountants.

Mr. Zhang Ruigen, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 25 June 2021. He also serves as a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor degree in Law in 2005. Mr. Zhang has
accumulated more than 30 years of working experience in the field of legal and
professional services. Currently, Mr. Zhang is a senior partner of Shanghai
Haoxin Law Firm since 2015. Prior to this, Mr. Zhang was a teacher of Zhejiang
Yueging Normal School from 1987 to 1991. He was a deputy director of
Zhejiang Haichang Law Firm from 1991 to 2000, the senior partner of Beijing
Lianfa Law Firm from 2001 to 2004 and supervisor of Beijing Jingzhe Law Firm
from 2004 to 2015.

*

For identification purpose only
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The Directors would like to present their annual report together with the audited
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 56 and 57
respectively.

The Board of Directors does not recommend payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) to the shareholders.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB163,433,000 (2020: RMB170,392,000). Movements in the
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year under review are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 59 and in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
under review are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
associations or the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares in the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chengqing (Chairman)
Professor Zhang Rongqging

Mr. Gao Borui

Mr. Yuan Chaoyang

Mr. She Hao

Non-executive Director
Mr. Xiu Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Zhu Yi Zhun
Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex

(appointed with effect from 3 February 2021)
Mr. Zhang Ruigen

(appointed with effect from 25 June 2021)

Mr. Chen Chengging, Professor Zhang Rongging and Mr. Xiu Yuan will retire
from office by rotation in accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of
association of the Company and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2021.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to 28 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (including Directors standing for re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has entered into any contract of service,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the executive directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The remuneration of
the non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are recommended by the Remuneration Committee. The
details of emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has renewed the Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance for
all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the contracts of service entered into with respective Directors, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year under review.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme is set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group had no
forfeited contributions under its retirement benefit scheme which may be used
to reduce the existing level of contributions as described in paragraph 26(2) of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of each of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO: or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO):and were required pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were
as follows:
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ZEERG  HEROREEENESR

S A
RE
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BE ABNMARRI KRB ZERSKAR
W

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares Number of (Note 3)
(Note 1) shares Total AR RE
Name of Director Capacity B EE options held Interest Bok
EEnA 514 (M7E1) FisERESE BrER (M$5E3)
Chen Chengqing Interest of controlled 836,753,000 (L) — 836,753,000 27.28%
corporation (Note 2)
PR E RiEEE kR (W3 2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,800,000 (L) - 2,800,000 0.09%
EmfEa A (Fiz2)
Professor Zhang Rongging  Beneficial owner 22,000,000 (L) - 22,000,000 0.72%
SRES B HUIE EmEa A
Notes: PI3E
©) The letters “L” denotes long position in the shares. 1) [LIERRHFZFE -
@) These shares are registered in the name of Cyber Success Global Investments Limited ©@) ZERDARKE R E2ERA 2 BIRIRIKIZEE

(“Cyber Success”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Chen Chengging. Mr. Chen Chengaing
is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Cyber Success is interested by virtue
of the SFO. Mr. Chen is also beneficially interested in 2,800,000 shares of the Company.

©)) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,067,222,500 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executives had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code or which were required to be entered in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Old Share Option Scheme (as defined below) and the New Share
Option Scheme (as defined below), at no time during the year ended 31
December 2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES IN THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares shareholding
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Name of shareholder Capacity B EE BABREFTS L
BRRERE HE 51 (MtzE1) (MfzE2)
Mr. Chen Chengging (“Mr. Chen”) Interest in controlled 836,753,000 (L) 27.28%
PRAKEE S 4 ([BRSEAE D) corporation (Note 2)
RiEE R (E2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,800,000 (L) 0.09%
EmEEA (M2
Cyber Success Beneficial owner (Note 2) 836,753,000 (L) 27.28%
RERIRIR EmAAA (M2
Notes: B 3E
©) The letter “L” denotes long position in the shares of the Company. 1) [LIERARRIRG R ZIFE ©

2) According to the disclosure of interest form submitted by Mr. Chen on 30 May 2018 in
accordance with Part XV of the SFO, 836,753,000 of these shares are registered in the
name of Cyber Success, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Chen is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Cyber Success is interested.
Mr. Chen is also beneficially interested in 2,800,000 shares of the Company.

Save for the disclosed above, the Company was not aware of any person who
had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2021.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) for, among others, the senior management and employees on 8
January 2007, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract, retain and
motivate staff. Details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 16 June 2017, the Company has
adopted another share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) for,
among others, the senior management and employees, which serves as
incentives or rewards to attract, retain and motivate staff. The New Share
Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2017 (provided that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the operation of the New
Share Option Scheme). Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to all full-time employees, Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) and part-time employees with weekly working hours of 10
hours and above, of the Group, substantial shareholders of each member of
the Group, associates of the directors and substantial shareholders of any
member of the Group, trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, and any
advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant, distributor, supplier, agent,
customer, joint venture partner, service provider of the Group whom the Board
considers, at its sole discretion, has contributed or contributes to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme
(i.e., 238,877,250 shares, representing approximately 7.63% of the Company’s
issued shares as at the date of this annual report), without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. No option may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The number of shares issued and to
be issued in respect of which options granted and to be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of grant, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The grant of share options to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates requires the approval of the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding an independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
share options). Options granted in any 12-month period to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive Director or any
of their respective associates representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant or with an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.
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Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. A share option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme at
any time during the period to be determined and notified by the Board to each
grantee, provided that such period of time shall not be more than ten years
from the date of grant. The New Share Option Scheme does not specify a
minimum period for which a share option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before a share option can be exercised.
However, the Board may, at its sole discretion, determine such terms and
impose such other restrictions on the grant of a share option. The exercise
price is determined by the Directors, and shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the offer date which must be a
business day, (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

On 24 May 2018 and 30 May 2018, 115,400,000 and 118,000,000 share
options were granted to grantees respectively. On 7 June, 8 June, 14 June and
19 June 2018, an aggregate of 195,100,000 share options were exercised by
grantees under the Share Option Scheme.
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The following table discloses movements in the Share Options during the
Reporting Period:

TRABREHNRRIE 2

Number of share options
BREHE
Closing
price of
the shares
Cancelled At immediately
At or lapsed 31 December before the
1 January Granted during Exercised 2021 date of grant
Category of 2021 during the year during R=E=-% Exercise Exercise ZERE
participant R-B--f the year FR the year +=F Dateof grant period price A AT
SHEALER =fl=f] FRRE  EHERAN FRTE =t-B REEH (& 1@ BB UTHE
(HKS) (HKS)
(B7) (&)
Employees in aggregate 34,800,000 - - - 34,800,000 24 May and 24 May 2018 to 0.32 0.32
30 May 2018 29 May 2023
(Note)
EELH 34,800,000 - - - 34800000 —Z-N\F —E-)\F 0.32 0.32
EAZtWAR HAZTMAZ
AA=+H —E-=F
EA=tAR
iE3)
Non-employees 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 30 May 2018 30 May 2018 to 0.335 0.335
in aggregate 29 May 2023
(Note)
FREEH 2,000,000 - - - 2000000 =F-N\F —2-N\F 0.335 0.335
AA=tH TA=THZ
—Z-=F
AA=tAhH
(k)
36,800,000 - - - 36,800,000

Note:  The Share Options are not subject to any vesting period.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 January 2022, the scheme mandate limits of the New
Share Option Scheme were refreshed and renewed. The said refreshed
scheme mandate limits were solely used to grant options to the category (i) as
set out in the definitions of the eligible participants (i.e. all full-time employees,
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) and part-time
employees with weekly working hours of 10 hours and above of the Group)
under the New Share Option Scheme as incentives or rewards for their
continuous contributions and loyalty to the Group. As at the date of this Report,
none of the refreshed scheme limits had been utilised.
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DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’” emoluments on an individual and named basis and
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 11 to the

consol

idated financial statements. The remuneration policies of the Group are

as follows:

The C

The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the employees is
determined according to their relevant experience, responsibilities,
workload, contributions and years of service in the Group and with
reference to the goals and objectives of the Group;

The non-monetary benefits are determined by the Board (or by the
relevant management after consultation with the Board) and may be
provided in the remuneration package of the Directors or the employees;
and

No person participates in the deliberation or approval of his own
remuneration package.

ompany’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as

follows:

U

(i)

(i)

the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by case basis
taking into consideration of the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the Board to the
relevant Directors under their remuneration package; and

the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board and in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules, with share
options under the share option scheme adopted by the Company, as
part of their remuneration package.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information of revenue and purchases attributable to the major customers
and suppliers of the Company for the year under review is as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods HEEmBREMS
or rendering of services PR # Fr 15 Uk 2

The largest customer BAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate hAAREFPEH

Purchases BEE

The largest supplier BAHER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAHERA

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (who to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted

above.
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RESUMPTION OF TRADING IN THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company received a letter dated 24 May 2019 from the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), which served a notice that the
Stock Exchange considered that the Company has failed to maintain a
sufficient level of operations or have tangible assets of sufficient value and/or
intangible assets for which a sufficient potential value could be demonstrated
under Rule 13.24 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to warrant the continued listing of the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”). The Stock Exchange has therefore decided to
suspend trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules and
proceed with cancellation of the listing of the Company under 6.01A(1) of the
Listing Rules (the “Decision”).

The Company was required to re-comply with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules
and would have a remedial period of 18 months to re-comply with the Listing
Rules. If the Company failed to do so by the expiry of the 18-month period (i.e.
23 November 2020), the Stock Exchange would proceed with cancellation of
the listing of the Company.

On 4 June 2019, the Company had submitted a written request to the listing
committee (the “Listing Committee”) of the Stock Exchange for the Decision to
be referred to the Listing Committee for review pursuant to Rule 2B.06(1) of the
Listing Rules.

The Board emphasized that the Group was undergoing a period of
transformation. The Group has terminated its business with continued losses
and disposed of its assets with substantial net liabilities for the interests of the
Company and shareholders as a whole.

On 6 September 2019, the Company has received a letter from the Listing
Committee setting out its decision on the review application (the “Decision
Letter”). According to the Decision Letter, the Listing Committee decided to
uphold the Decision to suspend trading in the Shares.

The Company submitted a written request to the Listing (Review) Committee
(“Listing (Review) Committee”) of the Stock Exchange for the Decision to be
referred to the Listing (Review) Committee for review (the “2nd Review
Request”) pursuant to Rule 2B.06(2) of the Listing Rules.

On 28 January 2020, the Company had received a reply from the Listing
(Review) Committee that they had decided to uphold the decision of the Listing
Committee.

By way of letters to the Company dated 12 February 2020, 7 April 2020 and
18 January 2021, the Stock Exchange imposed the following resumption
guidance for the Company:

(i) Demonstrate its compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules;

(ii) Publish all outstanding financial results and address any audit
modifications; and

(iii) Re-comply with Rules 3.10, 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.
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On 9 July 2021, the Company has submitted a resumption proposal to the
Stock Exchange. The resumption proposal submitted to the Stock Exchange
set forth the business, financial and other material information of the Company
to demonstrate that the Company has fulfilled all the Resumption Conditions.

The trading of the Shares has been resumed on 8 September 2021.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
26 May 2019, 28 May 2019, 4 June 2019, 9 September 2019, 16 September
2019, 24 January 2020, 12 February 2020, 7 April 2020, 23 April 2020, 24 July
2020, 23 October 2020, 8 January 2021, 22 January 2021, 22 April 2021, 12
July 2021, 7 September 2021 and 8 September 2021 respectively.

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION AND AUDIT QUALIFICATION

Due to the uncertainties in relation to the litigation to the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company, the Auditor had been unable to obtain
supportable evidence for the Auditor to assess whether provision of litigation as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were fairly stated and whether the profit or
loss effect on the provision of litigation for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 were properly stated. The Auditor had issued qualified opinion on
this matter.

There was no difference in view on this basis for audit qualification between the
Auditors and the Company’s management.
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The details of the basis are as follows:

U

(i)

The management is of the view that no provision should be provided
concerning the Litigations as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in light of
the basis as stated in the Appeal (to be defined in the section headed
“LITIGATION”). However, the result of the Appeal was not yet available
up to the date of the Annual Report of the Company, which led to the
uncertainties on the extent and financial impact arising from the Litigation
on the consolidated financial statement of the Company; and

The Company, as one of the joint guarantors under the Finance Lease
Agreement 2016 (to be defined in the sub-section headed “Litigation”
under section headed “Events after the reporting period”), is jointly liable
together with other joint guarantors in the Litigations. The extent of and
financial impact on the provision for Litigations on the Company is
uncertain.

The Company has, through its PRC legal representatives, endeavoured
to liaise with the court as to when the trial could proceed. However, the
court replied that they are occupied and would not be able to commit as
to specifically when such trial could be arranged at the date of this
Report. As such, the Company further confirms that there is currently no
concrete timetable for the Litigations. Accordingly, the Company is of
the view that there is no certainty in the results of the Litigations up to
now.

As mentioned above, the Company was not in control and not in the
position to provide the relevant conclusive supportive evidence to the
Auditors regarding the assessment concerning the Litigations. The
Company will continue to liaise with the court on the progress of the
Appeal and further discuss with the Auditors once any updates relating
to the Appeal is available.

The management of the Company has explored the possibility of
engaging a PRC lawyer to issue a legal opinion on the likely outcome of
the litigation case to address the concerns of the Auditors. Nevertheless,
the Auditors considered that the said legal opinion is insufficient to
remove the uncertainties of the Litigations by contemplating 1) the fact
that the judgement had been made by Beijing No.4 Intermediate
People’s Court *dt 7 % 0 H & A AP dated 22 December 2020;
and 2) the uncertainties as mentioned above. The Company further
understands from the Auditors that they would likely to continue to issue
qualified opinion on the provision of litigation until the final judgement is
handed down by the court on the litigations whereby all uncertainties in
relation to such litigation will ultimately be removed.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed and concurred with the management’s
view.

The Company understands that the Auditors could only remove the qualification
after the final judgement has been handed down by the court on the litigations.
Even if the management is going to make a full provision in the financial
statements, the Auditors would still have doubt and uncertainty on the truth
and fairness of such provision amount, which may result in substantial
difference against the final judgement to be ultimately handed down by the
court, and as such the qualified opinion will still remain.

The Company also note that the Auditors are not in the position on advising as
to whether the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ending 31 December 2022 will be free of the audit qualification
specifically with respect to the subject litigation at this juncture since, as
explained above, the basis leading to the qualification arose from the
uncertainties pertaining to the Appeal.

The Company understands that in the event that the Appeal will be heard and
the relevant judgement is handed down before the announcement of the
annual results of the Company for the financial year ending 31 December 2022,
such uncertainties would no longer exist and, given that 1) the management
will take immediate appropriate action to fully reflect the financial impact
brought by the final judgement of the court in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ending 31 December 2022; and 2) the
Auditors are satisfied with the supporting documents and audit evidence to be
provided by the management, such qualification would then be removed
accordingly.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save for the events disclosed below, there was no other major subsequent
events occurred since the Reporting Period up to the date of this report.

Issue of Convertible Notes

On 13 January 2022, the Company has issued two convertible notes (the
“Convertible Notes”) in an aggregate principal amount of HK$72,000,000 to
two subscribers, namely Mr. Zhi Shao Huan and Mr. Jiang Heng Guang under
general mandate. Each of the subscribers are parties independent of and not
connected with the Company and its connected persons.

The net proceeds from the Convertible Notes were intended to be used as the
general working capital of the Company’s pharmaceutical products business:

(@) approximately 45% of the net proceeds will be used for the purchase of
production plant, equipment and facilities and the purchase of raw
materials for pharmaceutical products;

(b)  approximately 30% of the net proceeds will be used for the enrichment
of the pharmaceutical product base, including the development of new
medicines and/or the acquisition of the drug licenses; and

(c) approximately 25% of the net proceeds will be used for the addition of
sales points and the staff costs of additional sales staffs.

The initial conversion price under the subscription agreement of HK$0.119,
represents (i) the same as the closing price of HK$0.119 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the date of the subscription agreement; and (i) a
premium of approximately 4.20% to the average closing price of HK$0.1142
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five (5) trading days
immediately before the date of the subscription agreement.

The conditions precedent of the subscription agreement of the Convertible
Notes have been fulfilled on 9 February 2022 and the Completion took place

on the same date.

As at the date of this report, none of the net proceeds from the Convertible
Notes have been utilised.

As at the date of this report, none of the Convertible Notes has been
converted.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 13
January 2022, 26 January 2022, 31 January 2022 and 9 February 2022.
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Response to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic outbreak in early 2020 continues to affect the
economic activities and logistics arrangement in 2021. A series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented in the PRC
and worldwide.

The situation in the PRC was generally under control after the introduction of
COVID-19 vaccines and the implementation of preventive and control
measures by the PRC government.

At present, the Group’s operation is generally stable. The Group will continue
to pay close attention to the development of, and the disruption to business
and economic activities caused by, the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position, cash flows and operating results of
the Group.

FINANCE LEASE AGREEMENTS

On 22 June 2021, Union Development Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Union Development”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into two finance lease agreements, namely the finance lease
agreement | (the “Finance Lease Agreement I”) and the finance lease agreement
Il (the “Finance Lease Agreement II” and together with the Finance Lease
Agreement | as “Finance Lease Agreements”), with two independent lessees
(collectively the “Lessees”), pursuant to which Union Development agreed to
purchase one set of “Phillips” Magnetic Resonance Inspection system and one
full set of automated production line for the processing and production of
Chinese herbal medicine as the leased assets (the “Leased Assets”) under the
terms of the respective Finance Lease Agreements from the Lessees and
leased back the Leased Assets back to the respective Lessees with the option
for the respective Lessees to repurchase the Leased Assets under the terms of
the respective Finance Lease Agreements. The finance lease principals under
the Finance Lease Agreement | and the Finance Lease Agreement Il were in the
amount of RMB29,580,000 and RMB29,880,000 and the finance lease interest
income derived from the Finance Lease Agreement | and Finance Lease
Agreement Il were RMB2,884,050 and RMB2,328,375 respectively.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22
June 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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FINANCE LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

On 23 December 2021, Zhonghuixin Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* /1
IE 2 gl &M E0% YA R A 8 (“Zhonghuixin®), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the lessor entered into a finance lease
agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement 1”) with an independent lessee (the
“Lessee 1”), pursuant to which (i) Zhonghuixin acquired certain leased assets
comprising electric cables and transformers located in the PRC (the “Leased
Assets 1”) at a consideration of RMB48,000,000; and (i) Zhonghuixin leased
the Leased Assets 1 back to the Lessee 1 for a term of 12 months with a total
lease payment of RMB51,360,000 and granted an option to the Lessee 1 to
repurchase the Leased Assets 1 after the lease term, which shall include a
finance lease principal of RMB48,000,000 and a finance lease interest (inclusive
of the value added tax) of approximately RMB3,360,000 under the Finance
Lease Agreement 1.

On 23 December 2021, Zhonghuixin as the Lessor entered into a finance lease
agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement 2”) with an independent lessee (the
“Lessee 2”), pursuant to which (i) Zhonghuixin acquired certain leased assets
comprising power buried pipes, electric cables and transformers located in the
PRC (the “Leased Assets 2”) at a consideration of RMB45,000,000; and (i)
Zhonghuixin leased the Leased Assets 2 back to the Lessee 2 for a term of 12
months with a total lease payment of RMB48,150,000 and granted an option
to the Lessee 2 to repurchase the Leased Assets 2 after the lease term, which
included a finance lease principal of RMB45,000,000 and a finance lease
interest (inclusive of the value added tax) of approximately RMB3,150,000
under the Finance Lease Agreement 2.

On 23 December 2021, Zhonghuixin as the Lessor entered into a finance lease
agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement 3”) with an independent lessee (the
“Lessee 3”), pursuant to which (i) Zhonghuixin acquired certain leased assets
comprising sewage wells, basins and rain wells located in the PRC (the “Leased
Assets 3”) at a consideration of RMB38,000,000; and (i) Zhonghuixin leased
the Leased Assets 3 back to the Lessee 3 for a term of 18 months with a total
lease payment of RMB41,705,000 and granted an option to the Lessee 3 to
repurchase the Leased Assets 3 after the lease term, which shall include a
finance lease principal of RMB38,000,000 and a finance lease interest (inclusive
of the value added tax) of approximately RMB3,705,000 under the Finance
Lease Agreement 3.

On 23 December 2021, Zhonghuixin, as the Lessor entered into a finance lease
agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement 4”) with an independent lessee (the
“Lessee 4”), pursuant to which (i) Zhonghuixin acquired certain leased assets
comprising facilities and equipment for performing arts venues and stages
located in the PRC (the “Leased Assets 4”) at a consideration of
RMB35,000,000; and (i) Zhonghuixin leased the Leased Assets 4 back to the
Lessee 4 for a term of 18 months with a total lease payment of
RMB38,412,500 and granted an option to the Lessee 4 repurchase the Leased
Assets 4 after the lease term, which shall include a finance lease principal of
RMB35,000,000 and a finance lease interest (inclusive of the value added tax)
of approximately RMB3,412,500 under the Finance Lease Agreement 4.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2021.
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LITIGATION

The Company has received a civil judgement (the “Judgement”) dated 22
December 2020 issued by 1t 5 11 28 IO 4 & A REPBT (the No. 4 Intermediate
People’s Court of Beijing®) (the “Court”) in relation to a litigation (the “Litigation”)
brought by 1t = X/b R L& B E MDA PR A & (Beiing Cultural Technology
Finance Lease Company Limited*, the “Plaintiff”) against, among others, (a) the
Company; (b) Fujian Sanai, the disposal of which was completed in April 2019; (c)
Lin Ouwen, a former executive Director; and (d) Lin Min, a former executive
Director.

The Plaintiff first filed a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) with the Court
on 30 August 2018, whereby, among others, the Plaintiff alleged that (i) Fujian
Sanai, a then subsidiary of the Company, had entered into a finance lease
agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement 2016”) with the Plaintiff on 21 March
2016, pursuant to which the Plaintiff agreed to lease certain assets to Fujian Sanai
for a term of 36 months with a total leasing cost of RMB134,954,600 and an
interest rate of 8.3%; (i) each of the Company, Lin Ouwen, who was a then
executive Director, and Lin Min, entered into a guarantee agreement with the
Plaintiff respectively to provide joint guarantee (the “Guarantee”) for the debts
owed by Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement 2016; and (i) Fujian
Sanai had failed to pay the rent payable under the Finance Lease Agreement 2016
since 20 August 2017, and the Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin Min had failed fulfill
their obligations as guarantors. The Statement of Claim was received by the
Company in July 2019.

As such, the Plaintiff demanded, among others, that () Fujian Sanai immediately
pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent in the amount of RMB33,855,032.69 with
the default interest accrued thereon, undue rent in the amount of
RMB47,592,982.21, default payment in the amount of RMB4,759,298.22 (being
10% of the undue rent), the legal fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the retention
purchase price of RMB100 and the cost incurred in relation to the Litigation; and (i)
the Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin Min be jointly liable for the debts owed by Fujian
Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement 2016.

The Plaintiff also submitted to the Court a copy of the alleged minutes of the
Board meeting held on 22 March 2016 on which resolutions were passed to
approve, inter alia, the provision of the Guarantee by the Company. However, only
two of the then Directors, Lin Ouwen and Lin Qingping, were recorded to have
attended and voted on the said resolutions.

Pursuant to the Judgement, among other things, Fujian Sanai shall, within ten
days of the Judgement, pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent under the Finance
Lease Agreement 2016 in the amount of RMB33,855,032.69 with the default
interest accrued thereon, the accelerated due rent under the Finance Lease
Agreement 2016 in the amount of RMB47,592,982.21, the default payment in the
amount of RMB4,759,298.22, the retention purchase price of RMB100, the legal
fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the announcement fees in the amount of
RMB2,650, the preservation insurance fees in the amount of RMB175,636.06 and
the preservation fees in the amount of RMB5,000 (collectively the “Litigation
Amount”); and the Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin Min shall be jointly liable for the
Litigation Amount, and they are entitled to claim against Fujian Sanai after
discharging of such joint liabilities.
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The Company has lodged an appeal (the “Appeal”) against the Judgement to it
R =k ARSART (the Higher People’s Court of Beiling®) on 22 January 2021.

Pursuant to the Appeal, the Company has pleaded to it R M A RIART (the
Higher People’s Court of Beijing®) to rule that the Finance Lease Agreement 2016
and the Guarantee were invalid, and to reject all of the Plaintiff’s claims.

As at the date of this report, the Company is awaiting the hearing date from the 1t
R # A RART (the Higher People’s Court of Beijing®) since the Appeal was
lodged.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18
January 2021 and 4 February 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance principles and practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 11 to 24 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group did not make any charitable donations
(2020: Nil).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. Upon specific enquiries made by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards as set out
in the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or any of their connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to or involved in at the end of the year under review or
at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at
the end of the year under review or at any time during the year under review,
and no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time during
the year under review.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors had an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict of interest
with the Company during the year under review.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

ARRER=_ZE-_—F—A=-+-HRHR
it RmEAARER E5F (LR -

BIE L - ARBEMILRT = RARER
REHR  RE T - R"FREHAERER
BRER  YRERENABERR -

MNAHERH  ARERELF - ARFHR
EEFIERTSRAREREERABEH -

E2HIE F2HARRAEHA-ZT-—F
—ATN\BERZZEZ—F-AMBHRE -

TEER
EBEARATHEMNEEEERAREHRNR
EHRAFREI1E248 -

RHEDNBRIERE

REARRAFMENYRESHM  #HE—
E-—F+ A=+ HLEFEREELRF
WEH - BEETRAOENR - KRRRMER

RARBIERE o

B

REBEER  AEBPEELTIMNESE
R ZEZTF: |-

EBERZEESTA
AARIEHM EMRAM R+ e Erives
TABERETELRRSHIRESTR([EESTF
A DIEAZERHRITESFR S ZIRTEL - &
ARRELEEEHE  2RBEERR #®
ERBEHRND 2 EETEETARHZR
TEAZAE o

EERNEHNzER

TR [ B 4F [ 48 2R B Sl B B F [ IR B )
BMESEEREAREAERRBNARA N
EEEMB AR LEMESNEAEE
EBMEBERNERNRS - ZHIAHF
A (T E RS EA R -

EP N

T BB AR 2 A5 R A S B R A RIS R
AN B S HAE ] B BB A R ER AR R AR AR AR ER
FEFEMHBARZHEEEAENTE
R A AR 2 ] 42 AR A SR Bk EL AR (AT BT /B8 & B AT
SUAR AN X B sk B AR M8 & AR AR TS &Y
BEREHWEE -

HEER

REBFER  BEEERERNRAEBE
PR AT RE AR B F B A s - B
EEARBFAEEAEMNEER -



AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board has established an
audit committee on 8 January 2007, with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the financial reporting
procedures and internal control and risk management systems and provides
guidance in relation thereto. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Company as well as the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 before recommending to the
Board for approval.

AUDITORS

On 23 February 2021, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has resigned as auditor of the
Company and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) was
appointed on the same day by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so
arising.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by Zhonghui Anda. Zhonghui Anda will retire, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution for its reappointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Future Development

The discussion on the Group’s business performance and future development,
being part of the Directors’ Report, is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The analysis of the Group’s key financial performance indicators, being part of
the Directors’ Report, is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

Our newly launched products may not be well received by the
market.

The success of a pharmaceutical company depends, to a large extent, on
whether the products it introduces to the market are well received by the
market. The primary factors which may affect the acceptance of our products
by the market include efficacy, quality and price. In particular, the introduction
of new products requires substantial investment of capital resources and
research and development efforts. If any of our new drugs is not well received
by the market because its efficacy is not as good as expected, it is too
expensive compared to other substitutes, or for any other reason, we may not
be able to recoup the investment we have made in developing such new drug,
in which case our financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR INDUSTRY

The pharmaceutical industry is extremely competitive.

Our business is subject to competitions from other pharmaceutical
manufacturers. Chinese and international pharmaceutical manufacturers
engaged in the manufacture and sale of substitute or similar products to ours
in China may have more capital resources, better research and development
capabilities and more experience in manufacturing and marketing. Many of our
competitors, including large pharmaceutical companies and other generic drug
manufacturers, have employed various strategies intended to maximize their
market share for previously-patented products. Competition is likely to intensify
if (i) the number of manufacturers or distributors of substitute or similar
products increases due to increased market demand or increased prices; (i)
competitors drastically reduce prices due to oversupply of products; or (iii)
competitors develop new products or substitute products having comparable
medicinal applications or therapeutic effects that may be used as direct
substitutes for our products which are more effective with prices comparable
to or lower than our products.

Our Company is subject to environmental regulations and may be
exposed to liability and potential costs for environmental compliance.
We are subject to the PRC laws and regulations concerning the discharge of
effluent water and solid waste during our manufacturing processes. We are
required to obtain certain clearances and authorizations from governmental
authorities for the treatment and disposal of such discharge. Any violation of
these regulations may result in substantial fines, criminal sanctions, revocation
of operating permits, shutdown of our facilities and obligation to take corrective
measures. Our costs of complying with current and future environmental
protection laws and regulations, and liabilities which may potentially arise from
the discharge of effluent water and solid waste, may adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The government may adopt more stringent environmental regulations and there
is no assurance that we will be at all times in full compliance with these
regulatory requirements. Due to the possibility of unanticipated regulatory or
other developments, the amount and timing of future environmental
expenditures may vary substantially from those currently anticipated. If there is
any unanticipated change in the environmental regulations, we may need to
incur substantial capital expenditures to install, replace, upgrade or supplement
our pollution control equipment or make operational changes to limit any
adverse impact or potential adverse impact on the environment in order to
comply with new environmental protection laws and regulations. If such costs
become prohibitively expensive, we may be forced to modify, curtail or cease
certain of our business operations.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

BITERBANEER

BEXNHIGRT -
ARRHEBTBEE E ML ERHHRT o
RABERELAERHEARREMNREE
mEBUERNTESBERRERRERE
ZMESHRIR  EEBMARRERE
EREERTSERLAEEENER - R
ZHBFEBERALMREEN R R T
BELER - 9EM T TRMNKENEADE
BEMEERNTSEEEX - RO EERD
HRBERIBUERNEER LD HEMN
BERMHFE R LFTRERE LT ML - (i)
HS R mn (R B R A 0R B (8 3l (i) 35
FEMBRNERIREEREFINE
ERBRBRNY LATEERERRAN
Em TAREREM MERERAQFHE
milERERE - MAXBMEENHES S
E:SW1) R

KA ABTREEZARDBEHRERE
AEEEREERS
ARBFETEHLEEBRETHHOTKEE
BENNDBEERIER - ARAFRZE
P mEIE R EE R HBARGE T
B R o B RELER AT BESI BRI AR
TEBIE - BEHEETAE  BERARBRE
BEWTRIERE - ETRERARRRFERE
ER R - A RBEBUS K K [E 48
MAEEEENETREHARBRER
MBRARBEREENTNTE -

B HHRAEBRBORRER  BTRE

RAERAERRG 2 EETELERER -
BRHIR A FRMAER R AR 8
o RRRRAXW B LB EFTE R R
BRIFAAFTOHREAZR - RURFEIER
HIREFAAEMNEE - ARREFIED
EANEARAAIARE Bk BHARMR
AR B H)SRAES M R EERANE
B HEURHEFATINZERERIFOELE
THFE - NETHHRITREER AR -
RNZEXATDEEEEE  ARAHK
BEE BRI RRRETHEREE -



ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection to the
sustained stable development of enterprises. Striving to strike the best balance
between cost control and environmental protection, the Group consistently
executes various measures on clean production, energy saving, reducing
consumption, etc. The Group also carries out regular reviews on various
environmental protection measures and routine jobs, to ensure that all
environmental protection permission and approval required by the regulatory
authorities of the PRC will be granted.

In the meantime, the Group endeavours to create an environmentally-friendly
work environment to promote the environmental awareness to employees by
encouraging them to use less electricity and paper, and recycle office supplies
and other materials.

The Company shall issue the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
separately in accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules in due
course.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE COMPANY

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, marketing and selling of
branded prescription and non-prescription drugs as well as Chinese
pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The production of all pharmaceutical
products must comply with the current Good Manufacturing Practice standard
of the PRC, and be approved by the China Food and Drug Administration. The
Group also needs to comply with the Production Safety Law, Law on
Employment Contracts and Company Law of the PRC. As the shares of
Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company is
also required to comply with the Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is not aware of any
occurrence of material breach of laws or regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

The Group acknowledges that as the PRC is in the midst of the critical period
for healthcare system reform, relevant laws, regulations and policies regarding
the healthcare and pharmaceutical industry will be updated frequently. Hence,
the Group will pay close attention to the updates and timely implement
measures required by the relevant laws and regulations so as to ensure the
business and operation are free from adverse effects.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group endeavours to develop and maintain good working relationship with
the employees. The Group provides its directors and senior management with
continuous professional trainings, including seminars and workshops, such that
the latest changes of regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices can be introduced and considered. Aiming to raise the operational
efficiency, the Group also organises various pre-employment and on-the-job
trainings to deepen the employees’ understanding of its business objectives
and operation. In the aspect of safeguarding the occupational safety and health
of employees, the Group spares no effort to provide employees with a safe
work environment and enhance their health and safety awareness. In addition,
the Group provides competitive remuneration, rewards program, retirement
and medical benefits to attract and incentivise employees.

Suppliers

The Group selects the suppliers prudently and requires them to satisfy certain
evaluation criteria, including track records, experience, financial strength, legal
and regulatory compliances, reputation, ability to manufacture high-quality
products, etc. The Group has developed long-term collaborative relationships
with various suppliers and endeavours to make sure that they comply with the
Group’s commitment to quality and ethics.

Sales Agents and Distributors

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to drug stores through sales agents
and distributors. The Group requires the sales agents and distributors to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations and the Group’s marketing
policies. The Group also collaborates with the distributors by providing training
for their frontline salespersons to ensure that they provide high-quality sales
services.
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UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes of information of the
Directors during the Reporting Period are set out below:

o On 3 February 2021, Mr. Knhor Khie Liem Alex has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 February 2021.

o On 25 June 2021, Mr. Zhang Ruigen has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 June 2021.

By order of the Board

CHEN CHENGQING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

Directors’ Report
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I

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SANAI HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
CERREXSEARAA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sanai Health Industry
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 115, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Provision for litigations

Due to the uncertainties in relation to the litigations as disclosed in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements, we have been unable to obtain
supportable evidence for us to assess whether no provision been provided
concerning the litigations as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are fairly stated
and the profit or loss effect on the provision of litigations for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are properly stated.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have a consequential
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 and the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and
2020, and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(*HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Trade and other receivables and finance lease receivables
Refer to notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables for recoverability. This recoverability review is significant to our audit
because the balance of trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables of approximately RMB55,498,000 and RMB215,550,000 as at 31
December 2021 respectively are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s recoverability review involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits and credit
periods to customers and debtors;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history with the
customers and debtors;

— Evaluating the Group’s recoverability assessment;

— Assessing ageing of the debts;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the customers and debtors;

= Checking subsequent settlements from the customers and debtors; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s recoverability review for trade and other
receivables and finance lease receivables is supported by the available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. As
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the provision for litigations.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements is located at the HKICPA'’s website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/auditing-
assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z—-——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
B T T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARET T AREFTT
Revenue = 8 67,608 121,404
Cost of sales and services rendered THE RIRHARTS 2 A (27,053) (90,483)
Gross profit EH 40,555 30,921
Other income and other gain, net Hab A REAM 9
Wzs 558 777 799
Distribution costs o EEA AN (638) (2,909)
Administrative and other expenses TR R EMAS (15,085) (11,933)
Written-off of inventories FEMHE (109) (225)
Profit before income tax CIREY T 25,500 16,653
Income tax expenses S fiF 12 (8,625) (5,161)
Profit for the year FREF 10 16,875 11,492
Attributable to: BT AT FE4 :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE Z =N 9,025 6,422
Non-controlling interests JEVERR M= 7,850 5,070
16,875 11,492
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXREE(ARESD) 14 0.29 0.21

56 Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEsREMZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E- & —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Profit for the year FREF 16,875 11,492
Other comprehensive income: Hig2miks -
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently H#ES @B HEZEm s HE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation BEGINETE ZEH =5
of foreign operations 1,151 2,467
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2HEUKEHAE 18,026 13,959
Attributable to: PN g
— Owners of the Company — RNARERA 10,176 8,889
— Non-controlling interests — SEIEARRE RS 7,850 5,070
18,026 13,959

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK 57
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R 3R

At 31 December 2021 WZZE=——F+_-_A=+—H

Notes
B aE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 15
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16
Intangible assets mEE 17
Finance lease receivables A& & YR IE 20
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18
Trade and other receivables B 5 BGRIE K 19
H fth fE R IE

Tax recoverable AU el FE IR
Finance lease receivables B E B E R W EIR 20
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFFABRZ 21

profit or loss TRVEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 22
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RNRER 23

HAth BT 5RE

Tax payables FEIBEIE
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERABERE

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBEE 24
NET ASSETS FEE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAL B
Share capital [N 25
Reserves s

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RREGER AR

Non-controlling interests PR =
TOTAL EQUITY IR R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 115 were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2022 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Yuan Chaoyang
REE
DIRECTOR
EBF

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited e Annual Report 2021

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
8,854 10,272
4,403 4,531
6,383 36,855
102,730 -
122,370 51,658
3,654 14,025
55,498 123,696
97 29
112,820 98,095
501 517
16,297 2,630
188,867 238,992
79,516 82,033
10,579 5,011
90,095 87,044
98,772 151,948
221,142 203,606
1,591 2,081
219,551 201,525
28,601 28,601
170,470 160,294
199,071 188,895
20,480 12,630
219,551 201,525

FESBE 15 EMNREVBRRER =T ==
FZRA-Z+NAKESSfEREETE

WA TALTRERESE

She Hao
RE
DIRECTOR
EF



At 1 January 2020

Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2021

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer to statutory
surplus reserves

At 31 December 2021

WZTZZF
-A-A
FRZAREEE

FRRERGRERE

HNEERSRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANREEAES
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share option Special surplus  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
EE
R& ROEE BRERE HRRIGRE BHfEE EX A iR Mt FERER At

RMB00O ~ RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB0O00  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETR AREBTL ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETL ARETR ARETL

28601  1,254954 1647 (10,416) 217 (736)  (1094321) 180,00 7,560 187,566
= = = S = 2,467 6422 8,889 5,070 13,959
28601 1,254954 1647 (10,416) 217 1731 (1087,899) 188,895 12680 201525
28601 1,54954 1,647 (10416) 217 1731 (1,087,899) 188,895 12630 201525
- - - - - 1,151 9,025 10,176 7,850 18,026
= = = = 561 = (561) = - =
28,601 1,254,954 1,647 (10,416) 838 2882 (1,079435) 199,071 20480 219,551

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Cash flow from operating activities RETHZHERE
Profit before income tax FR BT 43 B4 B g A 25,500 16,653
Adjustments for: R TYRIEFE
Interest income FEMA (712) (1)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERREZEIE
and equipment = 24
Depreciation of property, plant VI BB R ETE
and equipment 1,454 1,526
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 128 129
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 1,965 1,969
Write-off of inventories FEME 109 225
Loss allowances for trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 2 BiERE 888 -
Operating cash flows before movements ELSFHRKLERENE
in working capital 29,332 20,525
Changes in inventories FEEH) 10,262 (9,921)
Changes in trade and other receivables Z 5 FEWGRIE R E At
FEWFRIE S 45,258 (29,348)
Changes in trade and other payables B 5 e~ FRIE A
7 {2007 i 2,517) 18,065
Changes in finance lease receivables MEMEERWFEEZS) (117,455) -
Cash used in operations BETEFTARS (35,120) (679)
Income tax paid BEETEE
— The People’s Republic — REE ARFEME
of China (the “PRC”) (reE0 (3,615) (81)
Net cash used in operating activities B TR FTABRSTE (38,735) (760)
Cash flow from investing activities BRETEZ2HERE
Interest received B HFE 1,831 1
Refund of deposits for acquisition of plant REWERE REEZF S
and equipment 11,200 -
Proceeds from investment in bond issued &EMM" AT ESR 2
by a private company T8 10,946 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BE j@% J'r‘?ﬁ}% PEL (73) (1,099)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HEELEEZFTSRIE 28,507 2
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZE - BE R& T%Z
and equipment Frf8 3k = 16
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEE /(TR REFHE
investing activities 52,411 (1,082)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBESEEYEM (CRD)
cash equivalents B 13,676 (1,842)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—BHHNEESRELZEEY 2,630 4,195
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes HNBEFE R B 7 32 9) 277
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—HA=+—HHNEER
HEZEY 16,297 2,630
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBELSEEYEHRIN
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December A+=-A=+—HHREL X
WEZEEY 16,297 2,630




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited (the (“Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 March 2006 and registered as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the (“Cayman Companies Law”) and acts as an investment
holding company. Its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the (“Stock Exchange”) on 1 February
2007. The address of the registered office of the Company is Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is Unit 5, 7/F., Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 33.

Reference to the announcement dated on 24 January 2020, the trading
of ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has been
suspended with effect from 24 January 2020. In view of the Listing
(Review) Committee Decision, the Company is required to re-comply
with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules and resume trading within a period
of 18 months from the date of suspension. Should the Company fail to
do so by the expiry of the 18-month period, the Stock Exchange will
proceed with cancellation of the Company’s listing.

Reference to the announcement dated on 8 January 2021, the Company
received a letter from the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2021 in relation
to resumption guidance for the Company including () demonstrate its
compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules; (ii) publish all
outstanding financial results and address any audit modifications; and (i)
re-comply with Rules 3.10, 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.
The Stock Exchange may modify the Resumption Guidance that have
been given and/or give further guidance if the Company’s situation
changes. Under Rule 6.01A of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange
may cancel the Company’s listing if trading in the Company’s shares has
been suspended for 18 continuous months, expiring on 23 July 2021.

Reference to the announcement dated on 7 September 2021, as all the
resumption conditions have been fulfilled, an application has been made
by the Company to the Stock Exchange for resumption of trading in the
Shares with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 8 September 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2021. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for the current
year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at their fair
values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It
also requires the directors to exercise the judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received. |dentifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the
goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income (for example,
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income),
the amount that was recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised on the same basis as would be required if the previously held
equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses of
goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured at
the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value
of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities that
have a functional currency different from the Group’s presentation
currency are translated into the Group’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their costs less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Buildings 3.33% or over the unexpired
term of lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20%

Leasehold improvements 10%—-20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Plant and machinery 10%-20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or when there is any
indication that intangible assets has suffered an impairment loss.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Derecognition of other intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assets, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated
at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

Land use right 2%-10%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial
direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment in the leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost; and

= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest income and
dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost and finance lease receivables.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with
the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses (Continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration
is adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer.
Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees. Contributions to the
schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at
the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements are identified from the consolidated financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(i
(i

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of the
following conditions applies:

U

(i)

(i

(v)

(vi)

(vii

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available for
use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets except goodwill,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the director has made
the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation/amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. The estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives. It will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
review could result in a change in useful lives and therefore affect
the depreciation/amortisation charges in future periods.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables and finance lease receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and finance lease receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

(b) Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sales.
The Group writes down slow-moving or obsolete inventories
based on an assessment of the net realisable value of the
inventories. Write-down of inventories will be made where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value
is less than cost. The determination of net realisable value requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of the inventories and the amount of inventory
written down in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and equity price
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and finance lease receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
credit-rating agencies.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2021 on trade receivables from the Group’s top five
major debtors and the largest debtor amounting approximately to
96% (2020: 86%) and 53% (2020: 36%) respectively of the
Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2021 on finance lease receivables from the Group’s
top five (2020: three) debtors and the largest debtor amounting
approximately to 89% (2020: 100%) and 22% (2020: 49%)
respectively of the Group’s total finance lease receivables.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk
of default. The finance team uses publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own historical repayment records to
rate its major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the
following categories:

5. MBRREEE

(b) EERE(E)
AEBERTEERBRFRIERE

BAT&E

Basis for recognising
expected credit loss

Category Description (“ECL”)
BRANEEEE
5l Ei::pud (HHEEBERNEXE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any 12 months ECL
past-due amounts
Rif T 77 69 KRR R 18 3 30 SR () e A R 0E 128 B EEEE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL
recognition — not credit-impaired
AJ &t B R EERARIEE R R EE N 2 HIFEEE B ISR
— BEEERE
In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL
— credit impaired
X9 FRBERPEECHREERE HEHEEER
— EHBREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial ~ Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
ik BRBRPABBABAREMFNE - BAEE UL FIER W8 A B FRIE
RSB

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these items by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience based on the past default experience of the debtor,
general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors
operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics (including high risk,
normal risk and low risk type).

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. All of the Group’s financial liabilities are due within one year.

Interest rate risk

The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances, which carry prevailing market
interest. The management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

HESREHIEMNS - A5ER
EREBNBHRESENEIR
% - A BEAEEEE
ATEBEREE REERARE
FEETHEHENEHREES
B WERBREREBSANBEE
WEsE - EHANEEREITEN
%ﬁfﬁﬁlﬁfﬂkﬁﬁx&ﬁiﬁiﬁ B
& B R TERIAR R AE W) BT /R R A i
BHBEEEBBRLRMA -
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FEERLBEERREBR(BE
=ERE - EEER IR R
D e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

&),

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments held for trading purpose classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange
and are included in the Hang Seng Index (the “Index”). Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared to that of the
Index and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity
needs.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

Financial assets: SEMEE -

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost

BEERATEZEREE

(including cash and cash equivalents) (B3EHR & RIEELEEY)
Financial liabilities: EHMEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR E AT B2 BB 1E
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B EREE (&)

)

REEERR
REEmEEEES A EEEBEN
IR EMEEREERES
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™3 WA A B A B
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n 2FE
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2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
501 517
274,381 163,995
274,882 164,512
73,925 65,261




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

A M HRR M EE

BE—_Z—_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

AFEI &
RFERTH2EENGTEBARERF
RZHHEEER R EREAER
BEX T 2 fB1% - AT A FEF 2B
RAHERR - B HETEN AR
BOR=(ERBR  UTEAFE

FERBARE  AEBERFERR
Bf5 2 R EERBER A BTS2
B CREHE) -

F_ERBARE  REAEXABEE
FEEABR 2 BARE(F-—ERE
EZREBI) -

E=EOH AR AERAEZ T
BEH AR -

REE 2 BRBERBEREFIAN
PEEHZEB APZE=[AER
EREARES -

R+ A=+—RAZAFEBRRKE :

Fair value measurements using: Total
FARAFERER: ABEt

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
E—EBR EE&R FZBHR —=ZF=—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TrR

Recurring fair value measurements: &4 AZEHE :

Financial assets at fair value BEATERFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE
Listed equity securities BELTRAES
in Hong Kong 419 = = 419
Unlisted equity securities BB LEMBRAFES
in Hong Kong - - 82 82
419 - 82 501
Fair value measurements using: Total
FTRAATEER : “Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
E—ER E_ER F-BHR —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
Recurring fair value measurements: & &4 QA PEE :
Financial assets at fair value BN EFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong BELMES 433 - - 433
Unlisted securities in Hong Kong EAIELETES - - 84 84
433 i 84 517

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

BHE_ZT-_—FR=-_FT_FTF+=A
=+—BULFE FEBHEF_ER
ZEWEEYR  TESEARBEHE=E
B AEBZBRANRAFERBHZM
BAEER RENREREHER -

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by
business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the board of the Company (the “Board”) (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
four reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(i) Pharmaceutical products: development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of pharmaceutical products, sales of pharmaceutical
related software and provision of consultancy services;

(i) Finance leasing: provision of finance leasing services;

(i) Other general trading: trading of goods other than pharmaceutical
products (ceased in 2021); and

(iv)  Genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services: provision of
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Board monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other payables attributable to
the activities of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is “adjusted
earnings/(loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including interest
income from bank deposits and interest exposure on bank
borrowings and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at
adjusted earnings/(loss), the Group’s earnings/(loss) are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and
other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
profit/(loss), the Board is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income, depreciation, amortisation,
impairment losses, finance costs and additions to non-current
segment assets used by segments in their operations.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

—F+=A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment profit
(adjusted EBITDA)

Interest income from bank
deposits

Depreciation and amortisation
for the year

Written-off of inventories

Loss allowances for trade receivables

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current
segment assets during
the year

Reportable segment liabilities

RENPEFZU2H
gt

2R HER
(&3HZEBITDA)

RITHEHMEIA
FRFTEREH
FEME
BoENABERE

ARRAIPEE
ERFRBIPEERE

T2HIBEE

BE=T=

7. ZEERE)
(@ o™WEE- ﬁE&EFMﬂ
@Zi;% ZT—FRkZZTZFF
TZA=+—RHLLFE  F@AKX
SETE2®RD A2 ER TN
T'&%éﬂﬁkﬁ%éiﬁu
DEERNEHE D FIRE
BE-Z-—S+=-H=+—8H
IEFE
Genetic testing
and molecular
Pharmaceutical Finance diagnostic
products leasing services Total
ERRARD 7
BEER MERE  £NDERB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥T R AR¥TR AE¥TR
53,815 9,301 4,492 67,608
29,469 9,137 193 38,799
4 82 - 86
(3,286) 3) (228) (3,517)
(109) - - (109)
(888) - - (888)
75,489 216,441 1,744 293,674
73 - - 73
(46,726) (9,792) (3,101) (59,619)
CEREEXEEERAF e —E-—FFRK
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A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. AHBER )
(@ Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) SPEE BEREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
ILFE
Genetic testing
Other  and molecular
Pharmaceutical Finance general diagnostic
products leasing trading services Total
ER#ARS T
BEER BENE Ht-—REH EUPERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARET T ARBTL

Reportable segment revenue REMBEF 224
from external customers 2 44,965 6,605 63,999 5,835 121,404

Reportable segment profit T 22 H%7
(adjusted EBITDA) (FZEBITDA) 17,220 6,048 1,441 311 25,022

Interest income from bank BITFRHEBA

deposits 1 - - - 1
Depreciation and amortisation 4 /7€ i $4

for the year (3:304) 6 (30) (276) (3,616)
Written-off of inventories HEME (225) - - - (225)
Reportable segment assets T 2HLHEE 55,649 113,126 64,751 1,667 235,193

Additions to non-current FRFEREDH
segment assets during EERE

the year 546 - 17 515 1,078
Reportable segment liabilities 2872 & & (25,409) (13,995) (15,218) (2,814) (57,430)
Note: P 3E
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external it 2®y U EHIEINBRELEEZHK
customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year. o FAWESIBRHE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities

A M HRR M EE

BE—_Z—_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue from
external customers

Profit or loss

Reportable segment profit derived from

Group’s external customers
Other income
Depreciation and amortisation

Loss allowances for trade receivables
Unallocated head office and corporate

other revenue and net income
Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses
— staff cost (including director’s
emoluments)
— others

Consolidated profit before income
tax for the year

Assets
Reportable segment assets

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Unallocated head office and corporate

assets
— intangible assets
— others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

DEER ()
(b) TWEFIBWE - Bz BE
REEZHER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARBT T
Wz
REINPEFE Z A 23R
72Uk 25 67,608 121,404
B
REAERMINIEFZ
A 235 2635 A 38,799 25,022
HAbUgA 86 95
-5 - (3,547) (3,624)
E FRWGEEBEE (888) =
ROBLBENHEERAR]
HAa A RFUWA 678 704
ROBL@MHEERARFAX
— BIRA(REES
B &) (2,575) (2,548)
— Efth (7,053) (2,996)
FABRABHEAGEET
25,500 16,653
BE
AI2MHBEE 293,674 235,193
BRAFEFABEZZCREE
501 517
AOMBHEERNREE
— B EAE - 28,507
— Efth 17,062 26,433
17,062 54,940
RABEE 311,237 290,650
8&
B =L (59,619) (57,430)
FEEFIEAE (1,591) (2,081)
RoBL@HEE R AR AR
(30,476) (29,614)
mABas (91,686) (89,125)

CEREERENERAT « —E-—FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_ZT-_—&F+_A=1+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. AHBER )

(c) Revenue from major products and services (c) REFEEMRER®KzZWRE:
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major UTAAREERE EEEmMMER
products and services. %2 W=D -

2021 2020

B T CTE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Sales of pharmaceutical products HEBEER 53,815 44,965
Genetic testing and molecular ERA R D FAEMZE RS

diagnostic services 4,492 5,835

Sales of other goods for HEEM—RESER

general trading - 63,999

Finance leasing income REEREWA 9,301 6,605

67,608 121,404

(d) Geographic Information (d HEEHR

(i)  Revenue from external customers () XREIBEFZ Uz
The following sets out information about the geographical TEREINEBAERKAH
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers, ShNER R B 2 Wk B PR D
based on the location at which the services were provided B2EBR c BEEREMR
or the goods delivered. RIRHRBEHE @ EH
2hED o
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Hong Kong 5 4,492 5,838
The PRC Fh 63,116 61,407
Europe B - 47,405
Others Hi - 6,754
67,608 121,404
(i)  Non-current assets (i) HFREBEE

No non-current assets information is presented for the
Group’s geographical location, as over 90% of the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the PRC.

REBEWEZ5|BBIER
PEENWRER - AR
L EEBI0% NIEREE
EMRPHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

() Information about major customers

Sales of pharmaceutical products IHEBEEER
— Customer A* — BPA
— Customer B* —EFB
— Customer C* —XFC

Sales of other goods for general trading $HEE th—fE FE

— Customer D* — BFEDf

i Customer A and customer D did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021, the figure shown was for

comparative purpose only.

comparative purpose only.

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products, other general trading
(ceased in 2021), provision of finance leasing services and provision of

genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during

the year are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers REZFEAHNZWEH

Sales of goods HEEm
— Pharmaceutical products — BEER
— Other goods for general trading — Bt —REFEM

Provision of genetic services and
molecular diagnostic services

LW RS

Revenue from other sources
Finance leasing interest income

Customer B and customer C did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020, the figure shown was for

RHEERRA LD F

B E AR 2 Wz
MEHEEMBWA

7.

HE

A M HRR M EE

B Ft+ZA=+—HBItFE

2 ERE R ()
() FABEEZFZEHR

2021 2020
—E-—F ZTTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT

327 22,765
20,947 =
13,397 2,300

34,671 25,065

= 35,171

f BEFAREFDREBE-T=—
FH_A=+—BLFEIESR
REBUKERTHR10% A LB
FREERBF B E -

5 EFBREFCREBE=-Z=%
E+- A=+ —RLEENEA
NEBMULESHER10% LA BB
FERE T B e -

I‘I&¥

AEBREEXBAFRE %L %5
HERHEEBZER  EM—RESH
(RZZT=—F=1k) - ##t \mﬂﬁﬁhﬁﬁ
oA R IR R A ROR & 5 F E W26 R
f% °

FRAERZZTEREN ZWRESEN
T

2021 2020
—F_—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ETT
53,815 44,965

- 63,999

4,492 5,835
58,307 114,799
9,301 6,605
67,608 121,404

EREELERERAT s — S —FFR§ 87



REVENUE (Continued)

The revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are recognised at a point in time (2020: at a
point in time)

For sales of pharmaceutical products and products other than
pharmaceutical products, revenue is recognised when control of goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been accepted by
customers (acceptance) after goods delivered to the specific location or
picked up by customers. Following acceptance, the customers have full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
have the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bear the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal
credit term is 30 to 180 days upon acceptance.

The Group provides genetic services and molecular diagnostic services
to the customers. Genetic services and molecular diagnostic services
income is recognised when the genetic services and molecular
diagnostic services is rendered and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the service.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN, NET

RITHE WA
B SUA

Bank interest income
Bond interest income

Total interest income FEWA B8

HEME - BEMREZER

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Exchange gain, net P 5 U 25 7 F 58

Sundry income FIFWA

Government subsidies* BT 485 B *

* Government subsidies are awarded to the Group by the government authority.

No conditions have been applied on such government subsidies from the
government authority.
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E’Jﬁﬁ Bt M R B EERINIER
REmEHREERK (BIEmM
Xﬁiﬁiiﬂ%ﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬂiﬁcﬁ?égﬁ
BWE M (BRI)) B iR e o RERIK
& BEPAEENBRAEDHEAARE
mmF WHEREHES M EEREIN
mAREE R AE R 2 Bk o PAERUNIE
E%E‘f,ﬁﬂz%soimo B e

AEERFPREEEBRARS FEY
DE RS - ZRB RN FEMD R
B ARTEHER R & D FEY2E
IRISEFFERR - BRI ZEE PRI R
ZARBEITAEE -

AU B EL At e 355 7 B

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
208 1

504 578

712 579

- (24)

52 35

13 89

- 120

777 799

* BT BY A A R BB B AT B 1R T 0 3K
I8 © %5 R B BT B ) R 4 B A
B 5 A6k 11 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (note 15)*
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 16)
Directors’ emoluments (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
— Salaries, wages and other benefits

Y - BEREETE
(BgsE15)*
ER A ERE (ME17)
FREEENE (Miit16)
EEHM (FIFE11)
H 8 TR
— EREEFGRIRETSI R

—¥e ITEREMER

Total staff costs* B8 TR

Auditor’s remuneration Z RN &

Expenses relating to short-term leases BHENEEE HAX
Cost of inventories* FERA*

i Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB7,170,000 (2020: RMB6,905,000)

relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

10. FRER

FRm A EFIBRIA TR ¢
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
1,454 1,526
1,965 1,969
128 129
1,382 1,423
727 152
7,876 7,769
9,985 9,344
1,328 1,423
454 1,401
25,243 88,166

' FERABEEES TRA - T8 R#H
BEKHARKET7,170,000L( =T 4F :
AR¥6,905,0007T) * ZEBEMEBER

EXEBBERENSHEBERASHE -

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z—-——F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 11. EERTEREFALTZEHE
EMOLUMENTS
(@ The remuneration of each director (@ BEZzZHM
Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEE R BEHI 5 383(1) ik &2
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies AA(EENREEHRE)ERE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation o BE o ESHIMEY W
are as follows: T
2021 Salaries, Retirement
st St 3 allowances benefit
Directors’ and other  Discretionary scheme  Share-based
Fee benefits bonus  contributions payments Total
e RER BHER DRHA
Ezhe AR WA SRR ERZAR @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

iFi ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR  ARET:R

Executive Directors ~ #{7€%
Chen Chengging BEE ()

(Chairman) 199 - = = - 199
Zhang Rongging REE 100 = - - - 100
Gao Borui iRk 199 = = - - 199
Yuan Chaoyang BElb 199 = = - - 199
She Hao AR 199 - - - - 199

Non-Executive Director F#{T8%
b4

Xiu Yuan 3 199 - - - - 199
Independent Non- BUkHTES
executive Directors
ZhuYiZhun KikE @ 100 = = = = 100
Khor Khie Liem, Alex ~ FFELER (b) 136 - - - - 136
Zhang Ruigen RIif (© 51 - - - - 51
1,382 - - - - 1,382
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

The remuneration of each director (Continued)

2020 Salaries,
—T-% allowances
Directors’ and other

Fee benefits

E =114

EE Tk H g

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

i ARETT  ARETR

HE—

A M HRR M EE

B —F+A=t—HIEEFE

11. EERRBRSHFATZEHE (&)

(@

Discretionary
bonus

[Bi2748
RMB'000
AREFT

BESZEM (&)
Retirement
benefit
scheme  Share-based
contributions payments Total
RIRGER AR A
SRR ERzAR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%TR  ARET:

Executive Directors ~ #i1TE%

Chen Chengging BEKE ()

(Chairman) 213 = = = = 213
Zhang Rongaing REE 107 - - - - 107
Gao Borui Yk 214 = = = & 214
Yuan Chaoyang 785 214 - - - - 214
She Hao KR 213 - - - - 213
Non-Executive Director 3#{7&%

Xiu Yuan Eix 213 - - - - 213
Independent Non- BUkgTES

executive Directors
Wang Zihao IfR 0] %8 - - - = 98
Tu Fangkui EFgE (¢ 53 - - _ . 53
Long Jun BE ] %8 - - - - %
ZhuYi Zhun N e (@) - - - - - -

1,423 - - - - 1,423
Notes: PREE -
(a) Professor Zhu Yi Zhun was appointed as independent non-executive (a) RREBHER_Z=_ZF+=A
director on 31 December 2020. =T BRZEABUENTE
-
(b) Mr. Khor Khie Liem, Alex was appointed as independent non-executive (b) FEBLER - —F_A=
director on 3 February 2021. ARZERBIIENITES -
(€ Mr. Zhang Ruigen was appointed as independent non-executive director (©) RIGIREER T Z—F KA
on 25 June 2021. Tt RABEERBIUIFERITE
=.
(d) Mr. Wang Zihao had retired as independent Non-executive Directors on (d) FFRAEER_ZT_ZTF+—A8
24 November 2020. ZHNBREBINITES -
e Mr. Tu Fangkui had retired as independent Non-executive Directors on (e) EAFBAEENR T -_ZTF XA
30 June 2020. =+HREBUIFMTES
(f) Mr. Long Jun had retired as independent Non-executive Directors on 30 (" BELER_T_TF+—A

November 2020.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

=T RAREBIIFRITES -

RER AEEHEANTWNES
SAHERME - EAEMARSE
B kT H i AR & B ) 22 =k
BRHE RNEE-_T-—FK
—ZE-EF+-A=+—HILtF
B BEEERECAMS -

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 11.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

HE—

(b) Five highest paid individuals

=

—E+=A=+—ALER

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, included two
directors (2020: three directors) of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 11(a). The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2020: two)

individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Share-based payment

ESRIERRHFALZME ()
(b) EEBREFHAL

AEEEHFALH  BEZEAX
NAEF(ZT_TF: =&
) BEZHEBEERME
M@ B T=R(ZT=_FF:

o hHMET
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R {K& FiET 4% 2k

VABR £ A EEHE 2 15 5K

ZHR)ATHMESLENT

2021 2020
—E=—F ZECTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
1,743 1,350

64 32

1,807 1,382

The emoluments of the three (2020: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

Nil — HK$1,000,000

R (ZZE=TF —R)EaH
AT ZBEN T TH4HER

Number of individuals

T % 1,000,000 % 7T

AE
2021 2020
B ZETF
3 2

No emoluments was paid by the Group to the above individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as for loss
of office during the year. None of the above individuals has waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—Z—-——F+-_A=+—HILFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FiSHiBx
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Current tax EHNIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) RS ([EMRER]) 9,115 4,096
9,115 4,096
Deferred taxation (note 24) EER A (FisE24) (490) 1,065
8,625 5,161
For the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, PRC EIT is calculated at 25% MAREETBERBATMS @ PEIDE

(2020: 25%) in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the

PRC.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group did not

Fri8®i Ty IR & o B AR R oA 2 R oA iR IR
25% (BT 4F : 25%) R KT E -

BRNE

STBEIRERE_T-_—F

R-Z_TF+-A=t—HILFER

SHRERBUE M2 16.5% BB R EHE -

B

E_ZE-_—FR-_T=-_FTF+=A

generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the years =+ —BIEFEREREBNEHEIE
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. BiE BERARNERHEZE T -_—FK

ZEZTF+ZRA=1+—HLEFERSE
B E S A ERTFUEF -

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group

REFSHE ZRURRD AEEH

is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and profit before income tax
at applicable tax rates:

Profit before income tax

Notional tax on profit before tax,
calculated at the rates applicable in
the countries concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
not previously recognised

Statuary tax concession

Income tax expense for the year

Bk TS B AT
EHABER @R EAE
B A M Ry B R B
AR E R 2 R &
FERRBMAZ TR E

RERHABRRETE
;EEEHL/ = ET%%EZ$R%$;;E

BAEAIRERTIAEE
BisR &
EEZ BB EE

FAMBHRAX

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 24.

AHNERRSBRSHMEH -

RERAH R EOBIER X SR TS
AlEFE R -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
25,500 16,653
7,067 4,647
434 25
(45) (20)
1,347 752
31 (1)
(209) 23)
- (209)
8,625 5,161

BIEB IR FIF M 24 o
EREEXEBERAT « —T-—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basis earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company are based on the following data:

Profit for the year attributable to

the owners of the Company for WA AR F N T
the purpose of basis earnings per share
Number of shares BEAE

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basis
earnings per share

BEt B IREAREF P
BB 5 2

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the dilutive earnings
per share was the same as the basic earnings per share as the impact
of share options had an anti-dilutive effect.
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A ESRERRFIPTAARAF]

BE_ZT-_—&F+_A=1+—HIFE

13.

14.

RE
EETERMEE_T-_—FR-FT=
ZE+ - A=+ —HIEFERNEMAAR

B o
/T

BREF
RRABEE ARG ERERBTTIRE
AT BUREE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFT
9,025 6,422
’000 "000
TR FH
3,067,223 3,067,223

BE-_Z-_—FR-_ZF-_FTF+=HA
“+—HULFE SREERFEEHR
EXANCEER  RAAEREAS
REEFE -



15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CoST

At 1 January 2020
Additions

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Additions
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Charge for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7%
RZEZF4-A—H
RE

HE

EHAZ

R ERAE

RZE-F4F-f-H
FRHEY
R 8
R A%

RZZZTHE
+=-A=+-Ak
—F-—%—-f-A

FREY

EHAE

BE—_Z—_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

15. Y% BERRHE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
Building improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
%A

HENE EEXER
BT % BAZRE "E  BEREER 3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTrT ARETT ARETr ARETx ARETR
6,175 1,278 460 9 3,838 11,755
= = 56 - 1,043 1,099
- = (56) - 67) (129
- = - - (20 (20
6,175 1,273 460 9 4,794 12,711
- - 35 - 38 73
5 - (20 E (44) (64)
6,175 1,278 475 9 4,788 12,720
498 66 92 - 349 1,005
664 88 93 1 680 1,526
- - (23) - (60) (83)
= = (1) = (8 (9)
1,162 154 161 1 961 2,439
668 80 96 - 610 1,454
- = (9 - (18) (27)
1,830 234 248 1 1,553 3,866
4,345 1,039 227 8 3,235 8,854
5,013 1,119 299 8 3,833 10,272

CEREERENERAT « —E-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z—-——F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAREE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —_EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
At 31 December: R+t=ZA=+—8:
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Land use right — - s R A 4,403 4,531
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=1+—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREEE 2 ITES L
— Land use right — T {F A 128 129

Expenses relating to short-term leases FREEHBAEREEREE

and leases of low-value assets HEZHAX 454 1,401
The Group leases various land use right in the PRC. Lease agreements AEEHETRZETMERE - HE
are made for fixed periods of 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on ek BEFHAS0F - HEKRNRIE
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and ER B2 - WA ZETRER KR
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the &1 - THE R I MG 225 - 1
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. EBETHBIEREEER -
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A M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Good
Manufacturing Other
Customer Practice intangible
Software relationship License asset Total
RIFEE
B EFHE RERR HUEVEE wct
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(Fftzta) (F#7to) (FitzEc)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETTT ARBTT ARETTT

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2021, 31 December R=-Z=-—F—HF—H
2020 and 1 January 2021 —ZECEF
+ZRA=t-HR
“E-—%—-f-A 33 2,717 11,753 28,507 43,010
Disposal e - = - (28,507) (28,507)
At 31 December 2021 R-T-—F
+-A=+—-H 33 2,717 11,753 - 14,503

Accumulated amortisation R BERRE
and impairment

At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—-F—H - 2,117 1,469 - 4,186
Charge for the year FRHAXZ 10 - 1,959 - 1,969
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-_TF
1 January 2021 +-A=+-H8kK

—Z--%—-8-A 10 2,717 3,428 - 6,155
Charge for the year FREARZ 6 - 1,959 - 1,965
At 31 December 2021 RZFB-_—F

+-A=+—-H 16 2,717 5,387 e 8,120
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F

+-RA=+—-H 17 - 6,366 - 6,383
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF

+-B=1+—H 23 = 8,325 28,507 36,855

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK 97
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A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—_Z-—F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

s

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(@)

The customer relationship derived from acquisition of Zentrogene Bioscience
Laboratory Limited during the year ended 31 December 2019 and is allocated to
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services segment. The useful live of the
customer relationship is 6 years.

The management had performed the impairment assessment on the CGU of
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services segment as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. No reversal of impairment is recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The license represents the Good Manufacturing Practice license derived from
acquisition of Fujian Yongchun Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Fujian
Yongchun”) during the year ended 31 December 2019 and is allocated to
pharmaceutical products segment. The useful live of the license is 6 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired an intangible
asset from an independent third party (the “Vendor”), which related to a right to
the economic returns on certain laundry shops in the PRC, at a consideration of
RMB28,507,000. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the useful lives
of this intangible asset is indefinite pursuant to the terms stipulated in the
acquisition agreement.

Since the acquisition of the intangible assets and up to June 2021, due to the
changes in market condition, the economic returns on most laundry shops in the
PRC is unsatisfactory and that the progress on setting up new laundry shops in
the PRC was far behind schedule. The management in accordance with the
clause of the agreement with the Vendor, had requested for the full refund from
the Vendor. The amount of the above mentioned refund had been settled in June
2021.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods

[ #
SUK

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

17.

18.

BLEE (&)

B -

@)

#H

ZEFRERERBE-Z—NLF+=
A =+ — B It ¥ = ¥ # Zentrogene
Bioscience Laboratory Limited + i % fi¢
ZEABRARS FEMDE R D -
BEFBFENAERFHR6F

EEERHN - _—FR_T_TF
+—H_+ HEOERBARD FED
PHRS D BN S EEBCETRE
&ﬁ BE-_Z-_—R-F_FF
+Z A=+ —BIEFE T ERERRER
@o

[ERERE_FT-NAF+_A=+—H
LEFERBREKFREGRAR (1R
BARDAGRALERGIER X H
REEHEERD - EEAEAFHS
6%F °

BE_Z-\F+-A=+—HLF
B AEER-2BLE=S(EF]
WE-REVAE PRYTRETH®
RIENEHERREN RESARE
28,507,0007C ° AR A EH AR
BB PAR] AR REBEERE
RANEMREH -

BUEREEENRREE T -_—F
NACARTIREE - PEKE D K
JER)AEE B R R E - BERERR
R E EEEER RN E - ERfE
*Efiﬁ;???ﬁﬂiﬁﬁé%ﬂ%ﬁ Ei;ﬁ
2FEER PARRERFAEER =
7735/\H1D/EJ°

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000
AR¥TT

RMB'000
ARBTT

1,917
1,737

6,521
7,504

3,654 14,025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. BZRWRERHMERRE

Trade receivables

B 5 IR

Less: Provision for loss allowance (note ¢) i : Et12EEEE (fizrc)

H At e 008 (FifREd)

RELERRETLZ
&% (fifite)

FEUS BEsE A R F IR

FANRIBRES ()

Other receivables (note d)

Investment in bond issued by a private
company (note e)

Amount due from a related company

Prepayments and deposits (note f)

Other PRC tax receivables HAbrp B pEW TR
Notes:
(@) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the other trade and other receivables

are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(b) The Group normally grants credit terms of 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to 180 days)
to its customers. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 5.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period, presented based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

2021 2020
—EB_—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
35,446 23,244
(956) 68)
34,490 23,176
6,727 29,146

- 10,946

2 2

12,964 60,326
1,315 100
55,498 123,696

Mo

(@) RZTE-_—FR-_ZT-_ZTF+=A
=+—B EHAEEME S EKZKIE
Fo H th JE WU IE Y & A — 4F R M B Bk e

(b) AEE-RAETFEHI0E180H (=
T-TF 30E180H)MEEH - B
AEBEEHRROE—SFE - SARH
5

RBEHRR - RBEEAHRMBRER
BR2HE S RUGIRRER DT

Within 30 days 30HA

31 to 60 days 31E60H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 120 days 91E120H
121 to 365 days 1212 365H
Over 365 days tBiA 365 H

2021 2020
e —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBFT
6,466 6,452
3,688 5,050
3,079 4,126
4,982 3,540
15,609 945
666 3,063
34,490 23,176

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes: (Continued)

(©

2T = F+=HA=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. B3 EWRIER H KR ()
FisE : (88)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: © E 5 RIS 2 H5R
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBFT
At 1 January n—A—H 68 68
Increase in loss allowance for the year F R R B AL 888 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 956 68
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to provide for REBEEABEMBREEEIR
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade % KAZHBEHEEBERMA
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been BHRUHENTEREEBETIRRE
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the aging. The expected # - REFRHEBEEEE  BHRKR
credit losses also incorporate forward looking information. BRAZEERBREHRERSHE - T8
BEEEBRTBSAEEER -
Within 31to 61 to 91 to 121 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 365 days 365 days Total
30AAR 31Z60H 61Z90H 91Z120H 121Z365H #iE365AH Fob
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—-%
+=A=+-H
Weighted average expected IFEF S FEE AR R
loss rate - - - 1.5% 5% 8% 2.7%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) B ZHIE(ARETT) 6,466 3,688 3,079 5,058 16,431 724 35,446
Loss allowance (RMB’000) EiERE(ARETT) _ _ - 76 822 58 956
At 31 December 2020 it 23
+=A=+-H
Weighted average expected T TR E A R
loss rate = =3 = = = 2% 0.3%
Receivable amount (RMB’000) EWZE(ARETT) 6,452 5,050 4,126 3,540 945 3,131 23,244
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EREEARETT) = = = = = 68 68
Included in the other receivables of approximately RMB344,000 (2020: (d) FNE fh B IR TE B9 49 A R #E 344,000
RMB14,327,000) represents interest receivables from finance lease receivables. T(ZEZTF : AR¥14,327,0007T)
AREREERKFENFE
The bond receivables represents the investment in bond issued by a private © BWESFERER —BELERRMET
company carried at 5% coupon rate per annum dated 26 June 2018. The R N\EXNAZ+"BEBEFEHN X
maturing date was initially 105 days after the issued date. Through the B5%HES - MBS ARTAY
negotiation among the Group and the bond issuer, the maturity date had been %1050 - BRAEBABHFEITAZ
renewed to 15 April 2019. HER - MR ELERE_TE—NFH
A+EA -
On 4 March 2020, the Group had issued an demand letter to the bond issuer on R-ZIE-_THFE=ANH  XEBRAESH
the request of the repayment of the bond receivable and the accrued interest. BT ABHERERERES RET
The entire amount of the bond receivables and the accrued interests had been BRI ERRMH - BKES KB S8
settled in 2021. BHER T —FE-
As at 31 December 2020, included in the prepayments and deposits of i} NR-E-_FTF+_A=+—H 5t AHE

approximately RMB28,692,000 and RMB11,200,000 relating to prepayment for
other general trading segment and deposits for acquisition of plant and
equipment, respectively. The amounts had been refunded from the suppliers in
2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 20. BEHREEWRIIE
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
HEM HEMSRRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —TTF —E--F ZTTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT AR¥T R ARBFT
Less than 1 year —FER 126,273 108,002 112,820 98,095
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMRF 103,232 - 102,730 =
229,505 108,002 215,550 98,095
Less: Unearned finance income 3 : R EIR B IE U2 (13,955) (9,907)
Present value of lease payments &S IRE 215,550 98,095
Less: Amount within 12 months & : 12 @ A N & %8
(shown under current assets) (IRENVEEDE) (112,820) (98,095)
Amount receivable after 12 months 12 {f A 1% fFE k1B & 58 102,730 =
Notes: Fi3E

21.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the finance lease receivables are secured over the
leased assets represented mainly by machineries and equipment.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral of finance lease receivables in
the absence of approval by the lessee. All the Group’s finance lease receivables are
denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

The weighted average term of finance leases entered into is 1.7 years (2020: 3 years) and
all the leases require repayment by installments. In the event the lessee breaches the
lease contract, the Group has the right to use or sell the assets leased and to call for full
or partial repayment of the outstanding balance of finance lease receivables. At the end
of the finance lease term, the lessee will be able to purchase the leased assets at nominal
price.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease
term. The average effective interest rate is approximately 6.5% per annum (2020: 7.0%
per annum). The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither
past due nor impaired.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Listed equity securities on Hong Kong BB LETRAFES
Unlisted equity securities on Hong Kong & 3E_F IR 7R3 5

21.

KRBk -_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—H0 &
ERERWFIEMERZEEEETERKER

EFRBARBHAENERT - REETATHESR
BEAREHEREREZ ERG - AERBZMH
BFREBERKFIRGUAREE - ARES
HESEERZEEY -

MEREZ MEFORAR17F(ZT2_FF:
3F)  FIBASHENEIHRGE - BERHEA
ERAY  AEEEREARHECHBEAE -
REAREFRER2HABLEERELERE
WHIRZ RIEBER - RBEEEHR - AEA
FREEEERBEEAEEE -

REEBEEHA - BENEUAER B HAMEEE
RE - FHEBREFNEHRE6%(ZB_FF:
TEFET7.0%) - RIREPRZBEBE R TR
RBE T ERE

BAFEFABEZEHEE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBF T
419 433

82 84

501 517

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. BERBREZEEY
As at 31 December 2021, the bank balances carry interest at average R-ZT-_—F+_-_HA=+—8 F74&
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2020: 0.01% to 0.3%) per TR TSR RN F0.01%20.3%
annum. Conversion of approximately RMB16,072,000 (2020: —E=FTF:001%20.3%) T E °
approximately RMB1,952,000) into foreign currencies is subject to the HARY 16,072,000 L( ZE=FF :
PRC'’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations. # AR #1,952,0007T ) i3 AN A

BT BIINEE R RD o

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EZEMNRERAEMENKIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Trade payables H G RIE 12,627 9,736
Payroll and welfare payables e REF 2,913 1,828
Accrued expenses EFtER 4,093 6,547
Other payables E AthpE S 308 50,938 46,684
Other PRC tax payables Hth op B S AR 18 2,724 466
Contract liabilities a#aRE 421 10,972
Deposits received B iz e 5,800 5,800
79,516 82,033

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice RIEHIR - IRBEHEZYNE S E

date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: MRIBEREDHTWT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Within 30 days 30HA 140 4,866
31 to 60 days 31E60H 5,916 1,006
61 to 90 days 61290 H 902 3,517
91 to 120 days 912 120H 2,486 75
121 to 365 days 1212365 H 591 114
Over 365 days HB3E 365 A 2,592 158
12,627 9,736

102 Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2021



24.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 January 2020
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Credit to profit or loss

At 31 December 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR M EE

BE—_Z—_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial

position

Deferred tax liabilities

BEMAAE

24, EEBIE
RAFERBEFENEEEBRRL
MIEEE(AE) REZHNAT :

Revaluation of
assets upon
acquisition of
a subsidiary Tax losses Total
Wi — B E
ARREGEE HEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT

2,571 (1,555) 1,016

(490) 1,555 1,065

2,081 - 2,081

(490) - (490)

1,591 - 1,591
FEMBRRREER

2021 2020
—EBE-—fF —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
1,591 2,081

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB49,878,000 (2020:
RMB42,945,000) as at 31 December 2021 as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the tax losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation except for tax losses of
RMB1,878,000 (2020: RMB1,942,000) in PRC which is available for
carry forward to set-off future assessable income for a period of five

years, as follows:

Tax losses will expired in:

2023
2024
2025
2026

—E-=F
—ZTNF
—T-hF
T RF

AREBR -_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H1
M\ 2T FTE B AR 49,878,000
T(ZZTZTF : ARM42,945,0007T)
BRELCHIBEE  RHEAREBEHS
AAEBRERENAA B ESERE
BB AR R ERBRF o Brp B
THIBEE A RH1,878,000t(=—F =
TE: ARMA1,942,0007T ) 7] 45 8 1L
I 885 A HA T 4F 9 SR SR P AR FR LRGN -
BRITBE  BEEBERETeRE A8

L

MR B IR A A T R R 28R -

R

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
148 148

311 584

648 1,210

771 -

1,878 1,942

CEREERENERAT « —E-—FEH

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SFRXEE0.01 7 T L A%

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-_Z-_ZTF—H—H -

1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —Z_-_ZTF+_-_/F=+—H -

T —F—HA—HK
—T-—%+=-A=+—H

Issued and fully paid: ERITRARE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEEO0.01 B Th L EA%

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-_Z-_ZTHF—HF—H -

1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —ZE-ZF+_A=+—H -

T —F—-A—-HEK
—T-—F+=-A=+—H

Shown in the consolidated and Rt+-—A=+—RH2&HE
Company’s statement of financial KR E A EAR R KT
position at 31 December

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary share rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

26. RESERVES

(@)  The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium
Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which a dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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25. A

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZEREE &8
('000) HK$'000
(FA) FiER
10,000,000 100,000
3,067,223 30,672
2021 2020
—E-—-F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
28,601 28,601

TRRER ABRRIRTREIRIAE
REERARARE LRGRIE—F -
FAEEBREERAARARGEETH
BEBRFHLA -

26. f#1E
(a) AEBERFEESEREZFHER
meBERkHEMEEmKER AR
MAEREHRET -

(b) wEEZMEREHN
(i) ROEE
RERSEHESQRE K
RARG B EREA®S IR
FADBIME - HEZpERE
EORRBBHE AR
RIBBRENEEERB R
¥BBEPERHER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—F+=—A=+—HILFE

26. RESERVES (Continued) 26. f#fE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) REEZHEERENGE)
(i)  Special reserve (i) R E

()

Special reserve represents the aggregate of:

— the difference between the nominal amount of the
shares issued by the Company and the amount of
share capital of Sanai BVI acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares in 2007; and

1l IR A T B IR 48
Lol

- RBEREEAAF
BV =TT +F
EmAETEEE
A ARDEE BT
P 0 B 8 = & BVI
WRRASENE
B R

(iii)  Statutory surplus reserve (i) EEREFE
As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for BIE R B EIMEE B EH
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s MHEERNER  NAF
PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of their FEHEARHEER
profit after tax to the reserve until such reserve reaches 1% 355 ) AP 4 I 10% LABI A
50% of the registered capital and thereafter any further HiEL BEEZHEEDE
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund ZHAMERZ50% M
can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can Hig 2 BB BEEE
be applied in conversion into capital by means of a Lo AT RBRFEHATAR
capitalisation issue. EEBEFERSEWSE) -
A AT 3% iR K AL BT IE
LABSHABE K o
(iv)  Share option reserve (iv) FBRERE
This comprises the portion of fair value of unexercised ZERERPRER FAAR
share options granted to eligible participants of the AERSEE BIREMNT
Company that has been recognised in accordance with the S AR D S SR AT R
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in W7 SR IERZ A
note 3. TEERE, A TERN—
o o
(v)  Translation reserve (v) ERZREE
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange V& H & B P A A E 3
differences arising from the translation of the financial BOINETS I SRR T E 4
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with ZHNEZEE o ZREBBIE
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3. MEESFTE S 2 & 5T BRSR
BRIE o
Reserves of the Company () ZARATEE
Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve loss Total
B RE BRERE 25t ER s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREF AREF
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF—F—H 1,054,954 1,647 (1,078,260) 178,341
Loss and total FREEREE
comprehensive expense B 2 %E
for the year - - (6,302) (6,302
At 31 December 2020and  R-ZB-T4F
1 January 2021 +-A=+—HEK
“E-—-%—f—H 1,254,954 1,647 (1,084,562) 172,039
Loss and total FABEREE
comprehensive expense RS 4E%
for the year - - (6,959) (6,959)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=+—H 1,254,954 1,647 (1,091,521) 165,080

CEREERENERAT « —E-—FEH
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BE_ZT-_—&F+_A=1+—HIFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 27. AQATHBEMRRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT R AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSET REEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZZE 76 76
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 21 33
97 109
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H b FEMGRIE 21 -
Amount due from subsidiaries JFE P BB A R FIE 199,884 207,195
Financial assets at fair value through BRATERFABEZ
profit or loss TRIEE 419 433
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY 83 633
200,407 208,261
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables E Ath FE K08 6,823 7,730
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 193,584 200,531
NET ASSETS EEFE 193,681 200,640
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXEHE
Share capital A% A 28,601 28,601
Reserves (note 26(c)) it (P52 26(c)) 165,080 172,039
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 193,681 200,640
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and AARMBRARERZE-__F=A4
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2022 and are ZHhBEESSERFETE I
signed on its behalf by: HAATALTREKRESE :
Yuan Chaoyang She Hao
REB RE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
£ )
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28.

290.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes trade
and other payables and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
strategy was unchanged from 2020. The directors review the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(@ Share option scheme on 16 June 2017

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 16 June 2017, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for, amongst others, the senior management
and employees, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract,
retain and motivate staff. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21 June
2017 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the operation of
the New Share Option Scheme). Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to all full-time employees,
directors (including independent non-executive directors) and
part-time employees with weekly working hours of 10 hours and
above, of the Group, substantial shareholders of each member of
the Group, associates of the directors and substantial
shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of any trust
pre-approved by the Board, and any advisor (professional or
otherwise) or consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer,
joint venture partner, service provider of the Group whom the
Board considers, at its sole discretion, has contributed or
contributes to the Group.

28.

29.

A M HRR M EE

BE—_Z—_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

EeRBER

FEFTEEES  UREREENE
BB EHAFERLTALE [
IV R BB TS B AR AN 2 M & M T 1
MmAREF ISR ARIR

AEE 2 EAERBRIEER  EP R
B HRNFIRREMENKIE  RAR

AR ARG R - BREEETRAR
fFéfE o

ARARBESFFF AR EARE
BoREE—_T-_—4F+=-_A=+—H
LEFE  AEEZRBEE-_T —TFH
L S - ERBBERE AR KA
KR IERE AR 2 BB iR B A
o BEEEER  AEBEBEBRET
AR K B tn B & LA R B 1T (B 5 5B
EIR B EHNFEEERGERE -

UESEEUROAERZRS

(@ R=ZB-—tFAAtTABZE
IRAERT &
RER-ZE—EFRNATRAR
B2 EBRBER  ARAR(E
hELE) SMERE RES RN
R BoAE RE BT 3 B B kg At
) EARS - BEBRHBE
T e8RS 3R - FrEB A St E
BE-E—tEFRNA-+—HE
TEMBEREYR RIERDF
RBERAS LEETRRERLE
=S AT BE R AL LRI AT B8
BIE - BRI BAESE B
SR ERBEEBRERTER
REAEERER 2 2RESR
EX(BEBUFNTER)RE
BIAENERI0NR R E2
RBES AEBZKERRZ
TERR  AEBEEAKE QA
EENTERRZBEA EE
SREHEEMEEZETA
ARAR A R B 2 M (T2
Hih) SkERERM - DHE - 4t
R RIBA - FF /%R
aRA - IRIEHRER -

CEREERENERAT « —E-—FEH
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@

Share option scheme on 16 June 2017 (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption of the New Share Option Scheme (namely, 233,877,250
shares, representing approximately 8.14% of the Company’s
issued shares as at the date of this annual report), without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. No option may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme if such limit is
exceeded. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and to be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The grant of
share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
requires the approval of the independent non-executive directors
(excluding an independent non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the share options). Options granted in any 12-month
period to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant or with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. A
share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to
be determined and notified by the Board to each grantee,
provided that such period of time shall not be more than ten years
from the date of grant. The New Share Option Scheme does not
specify a minimum period for which a share option must be held
nor a performance target which must be achieved before a share
option can be exercised. However, the Board may, at its sole
discretion, determine such terms and impose such other
restrictions on the grant of a share option. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the offer date which must be a business day, (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

LEREEUIRORBERZRS

()

(a)

RZB—tEXA+AAZE
BRAEETEI (&)

EREARD AR B AR -
BT B AR M AT 81 AT 35 2 B AR
AT R ZBDEE - TEEBA
RARRNFERETEZBHE
17 B% 19 10% ( B1 233,877,250
B RAFEHRABBHOEARFED
BT BLEN8.14%) » 1T 1R
BB R & AR AR E
hEER R ZI D R BB EFTE
BIFT A 8 AR T{E R AR A R A] T 8%
THRMEE FIREEAEKTE
BB EE A DR BB
1730% ° finitB % REEE « BT
IR B A -
FERGEARDTRRELAER
RER12 18 A B A [ A &
BIA LB k8 T 5 2 B AR
Fp 2 BT BT (D &
B TEBBARRNRE A
BEITRM1% ° AARREES -
BETBRABREERRRFES
5 B8 AR T ERES
BEBY FDITES(TEES
BEREARANBLIERNITE
=) b o MR 1218 B 2R
AR FTARE E B R E I
WITESARES ENEMRHE
A2 BRI R 2 B 5 8 B 8
BANRRE Y BEEBITRG
0.1%3k # {& 8 85,000,000
TC  WEEARRRIER ELLE -

FEZMBERAER  FRABES
1.008 T FAREHEARHR
B -BREINNHESSETT
BAZ AR A Z B BEHRANRIE
AR AT B B0 TR BE RS TTIE -
WZEHRBEBAE L B %
+F o BT B EARE R
B BT E RN AR AR
M RIK IR sk N EIERR 2 %48
BiZ R EFQAETEE
MEETHBIGER  WARLE
PRIERL T E MRS o ITEEAAN
PEIEEET  ETEERUT
=EZ&ESE  (\REHRBEAE
BEEB)AQBIRG ZWHIE
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29. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Movements of share options granted/exercised

No vesting period or vesting condition on the share options and
the share options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant and within a period of five years from the date of grant. The
weighted average remaining contractual life is 1.4 years (2020: 2.4
years).

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

Outstanding at 1 January 2020, R-ZZE-_TF—H—AQ8 -

31 December 2020 and —T-FF
31 December 2021 +TZA=+—AK
—T-—F

TZA=+—BERITE

Exercisable at 31 December 2020 R=—ZT-ZTF
and 2021 —E-—F
+=-—A=+—H
Al FATfE

Note:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based
on Binomial Model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model.

Fair value at measurement date REtE B8z AFE
Share price [

Exercise price 1T B

Expected volatility TEERR IR

Option life fE AR 5
Expected dividend TEEARR B

Risk-free interest rate R B X

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based
on the weighted average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these share options were
granted to the employees, directors of the Company for recognising their
services to the Group, and certain share options were granted to
consultants for rendering miscellaneous services to the Group. Since the
services provided by consultants are such unique that the fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of share option granted.

20, LIEREEUROBERZRS
(&)
(b) EEE EITHEZERESE
BB R R B HAR R B
& AREBHEERE B
B AFHRAZ ERERER F1T
& o IEFHBETEHFHAE4
F(ZTZTF :24F) -

SHEREL TRHAARBE K
RRNBE B - ARG 28 AE

HZRER
() FEREEE KT
®REWT :

Weighted average
exercise price  Number of options

IR IFITEE BREZE
('000)
(F1n
HK$0.33 7 7T 36,800
HK$0.33 7 7T 36,800
ik -
WEE> AT ERER

ERB&R B RD W2 B KR
R 2 RFETISE R BRE
ZRFEE - IRBREZ
AT ERR A SRS -
BREZ A OFHRTAEARE
B ABUR -

24 May 2018 30 May 2018
—E-N\FHEA=-1TWAH —E2-N\FREA=TH

HK$0.05 % 7T HK$0.06 77T
HK$0.32 7% 7T HK$0.335 47T
HK$0.32 % 7T HK$0.335 % 7T
49.85% 49.68%

5 years 5 years &

Nil = Nil =

2.19% 2.07%

TEHR 0E Ty IR R A SR iR (1R R
BN ORBFERAE)
FHE - WIRERFATAER KR
RRIRTREAZ B T EE - TE,HH
BETREBERBFHE -
E’Jﬁm)&%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ&?iﬂﬁaﬂ
BEbFTELEEAYE -

ARAREERR  ZFTBEHED
BIARARZEBRES A
HERAARERERE 2R

W & F AR BIRHARIRRE 2
FEHAANE TR - BRFEAA
REZRBR/EE  HDAFEE
AR SRR B MATRMRS 2R
P LB 2 R ERE -

CEREERENERAT « —E-—FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

30.

31.

32.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has no capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed scheme. The employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no other transactions
with its related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

(@)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2021 are as follows:

e KRR
rEs = e — e - R S s IE4EE
33. AATRFEMELARFHE

(@) £ N=T =S ot Rl Fld
AREEEHBRABFBFLOT

Issued and Proportion of ownership interest
Place of fully paid FeREM
incorporation/ share capital/ Group’s
registration/ registered capital/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiaries operation capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
ERAL/ BRORMRKRE/ B3 ] AR W8
WEARER R/ e HMER/RA ERER ] REAKE  IEEEB
% % %
Sanai International Investment Company British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares of 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited (formerty known as (‘BVI"/Hong Kong US$1 each
“Wuyi International Pharmaceutical
Investment Company Limited”
(“Sanai BVI")
“RERREAERAR (MRERARBRERRE ZBRLES 10000 REREE REER
ARAR)(=EBV)) (EBEXES])/EE  1XTOLRR
Sanai International Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary share 100 - 100 General trading
(formerly known as China Green Energy
Interactive Development Limited)
“RERESERAR (A1 X 10,000,000 R EE R —%E5
[MESERREHERERAF])
Union Development Financial Leasing PRC wholly-foreign-owned  Registered capital 100 - 100 Provision of finance
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (note(i) enterprise for a term RMB120,000,000 leasing service
of 30 years commencing
5 December 2016
BRBRBEEE (R BRAR () E - AEEARE HER RERERERS
—E-5+-AREA AR#120,000,0007T
T AER0E
Zhejiang Sanai Biotechnology Limited (note (i) PRC wholly-foreign-owned ~ Registered capital 100 - 100 General trading
enterprise for a term HK$30,000,000
of 10 years commencing
8 September 2017
WI=EENBRERAE () E - AEEARE HER -RE5
“E-+£NANR AR #30,000,0007C
T AE10E
Shenzhen Sanai Industry 100-100 Company PRC wholly-foreign-owned  Registered capital 100 - 100 General trading
Limited (note (if) enterprise for a term HK$10,000,000
of infinitely sustainable
commencing 21June 2018
RIN=FEXERRE (W G) hE - AEEARE HER —%E5
- \&rAZt+-H AK%10,000,0007T
KBS
Forever Trump Development Holdings Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary shares of 100 - 100 Investment holding
(“Forever Trump’) USS$1 each
BBERERERAA(BEER]) ARRAES 50000k B HREE REER
1ETMEER
Forever Trump Energy Technology Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary share 100 = 100 Investment holding
(“Forever Trump Energy’) of HK$1 each
BHHRRERAR ([BELR]) X 1,000,000 R BAREE REER

AT ERR

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2021 are as follows: (Continued)

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HULEFE

33.

@ m=

RATEEMBLAFE (&)

EZ-_—F+-_A=+—HzZ

ARBEENBRABFBENT

(&)
Issued and Proportion of ownership interest

Place of fully paid it bl

incorporation/ share capital/ Group’s

registration/ registered capital/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiaries operation capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity

ERAL/ BRARBRRA/ REE AAF WE
HWEAREE R/ g% ERER/RA ERER 5E DEAKE  TEEER

% % %

Fujian Yongchun (note (i) PRC limited liabilty Registered capital 51 - 51 Develop, manufacture,
companies under RMB15,000,000 marketing and sales
the PRC law of pharmaceutical

products

REAE (HEE() PEERE T AR R BE HHR
REEREAAT AR 15,000,00070 HEBEER

Fujian Zhixin Medicine Co., Limited (note (i) PRC limited liability Registered capital 100 - 100 Marketing and sales
companies under RMB2,000,000 of pharmaceutical
the PRC law products

BEERBEARAA () PEERETH aMER REREEREER
PEEREAAA AR#2,000,0007T

Zentrogene Bioscience Laboratory Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary share 100 - 100 Provision of genetic

of HK$1 each testing and molecular
diagnostic services

Zentrogene Biosclence Laboratory Limited & 2,000,000 R B REE REERRAIR

1B EBR AFENDERS

Zhonghuixin Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) PRC wholly-foreign-owned ~ Registered capital 100 - 100 Provision of finance

Co., Ltd (note (i) enterprise for a term US$200,000,000 leasing service
of 30 years commencing
5 April 2016

RESREEE (R BRAE (@) E SEEALE EhEx REBARERH
—Z-"¥MARA 200,000,000 7T
EARHE

Notes: g

(0] None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end
of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.

(ii) The English names of the subsidiaries are presented for identification
purposes only.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

()

The following table shows information of the subsidiary that has
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before inter-

company eliminations.

Name of the subsidiary

Principal place of business/country of

incorporation
% of ownership interest held by NCI

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

Year ended 31 December
Revenue

Profit

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

Divided paid to NCI

Fujian Yongchun
The PRC

49%

FRBEE
mEBEE
mBAIE
FRBaE

BEFE

Rt s
BET-A=+—HILFE
Yezs

ikl

2EWRALER
DECEFFEREE 2 E A

[BAREZEL G Fo o)

33.

A M HRR M EE

BE—_Z—_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

ROTEEMBLAFE (&)

)

TRINREHALE M= BEBEXR
BSERE R M s ([ JFHEARME RS 1) #O
MEARES - MiEERTE

BN R SHAT S 58 o
MB ARG 1BEXE
FEEEMT Gy
FEf AR S ATE B R
FEEREE AN 49%
FrEREEE DL
2021 2020
— - —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
19,050 22,255
69,214 25,802
(44,877) (20,201)
(1,591) (2,081)
41,796 25,775
20,480 12,630
47,650 32,726
16,021 10,346
16,021 10,346
7,850 5,070

—EREEXEEARAT c —E-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

34.

LITIGATIONS

As referred to the announcement of the Company dated 18 January
2021, the Company has received a civil judgement (the “Judgement”)
dated 22 December 2020 issued by 1t 5= 55 PUH 4% A RJ%EFT (the No.
4 Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing*) (the “Court”) in relation to a
litigation (the “Litigation”) brought by 1t R 3 LB s & H &7 R
‘A 7] (Beijing Cultural Technology Finance Lease Company Limited*, the
“Plaintiff”) against, among others, (a) the Company; (b) Fujian Sanai
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Fujian Sanai”), the disposal of which
was completed in April 2019; (c) Lin Ouwen, a former executive Director;
and (d) Lin Min, a former executive Director.

The Plaintiff first filed a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) with
the Court on 30 August 2018, whereby, among others, the Plaintiff
alleged that (i) Fujian Sanai, a then subsidiary of the Company, had
entered into a finance lease agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement”)
with the Plaintiff on 21 March 2016, pursuant to which the Plaintiff
agreed to lease certain assets to Fujian Sanai for a term of 36 months
with a total leasing cost of RMB134,954,600 and an interest rate of
8.3%; (i) each of the Company, Lin Ouwen, who was a then executive
Director, and Lin Min, entered into a guarantee agreement with the
Plaintiff respectively to provide joint guarantee (the “Guarantee”) for the
debts owed by Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement; and (iii)
Fujian Sanai had failed to pay the rent payable under the Finance Lease
Agreement since 20 August 2017, and the Company, Lin Ouwen and
Lin Min had failed fuffill their obligations as guarantors. The Statement of
Claim was received by the Company in July 2019.

As such, the Plaintiff demanded, among others, that (i) Fujian Sanai
immediately pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent in the amount of
RMB383,855,032.69 with the default interest accrued thereon, undue
rent in the amount of RMB47,592,982.21, default payment in the
amount of RMB4,759,298.22 (being 10% of the undue rent), the legal
fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the retention purchase price of
RMB100 and the cost incurred in relation to the Litigation; and (i) the
Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin Min be jointly liable for the debts owed by
Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement.

The Plaintiff also submitted to the Court a copy of the alleged minutes of
the Board meeting (the “Board Meeting”) held on 22 March 2016 on
which resolutions (the “Resolutions”) were passed to approve, inter alia,
the provision of the Guarantee by the Company. However, only two of
the then Directors, Lin Ouwen and Lin Qingping, were shown to have
attended and voted on the Resolutions.

Pursuant to the Judgement, among other things, Fujian Sanai shall,
within ten days of the Judgement, pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent
under the Finance Lease Agreement in the amount of
RMB33,855,032.69 with the default interest accrued thereon, the
accelerated due rent under the Finance Lease Agreement in the amount
of RMB47,592,982.21, the default payment in the amount of
RMB4,759,298.22, the retention purchase price of RMB100, the legal
fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the announcement fees in the
amount of RMB2,650, the preservation insurance fees in the amount of
RMB175,636.06 and the preservation fees in the amount of RMB5,000
(collectively the “Litigation Amount”); and the Company, Lin Ouwen and
Lin Min shall be jointly liable for the Litigation Amount, and they are
entitled to claim against Fujian Sanai after discharging of such joint
liabilities.
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35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

As referred to the announcement of the Company dated 4 February
2021, the Company has lodged an appeal (the “Appeal”) against the
Judgement to b 3 & & ARERT (the High People’s Court of Beijing®)
on 22 January 2021.

Pursuant to the Appeal, the Company has pleaded to It R EAZAAR
7B (the High People’s Court of Beijing®) to rule that the Finance Lease
Agreement and the Guarantee were invalid, and to reject all of the
Plaintiff’s claims.

There was no further development for this litigation during the reporting
period.

The directors are of the view that no provision should be provided
concerning the Litigation as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in light of
the basis as stated in the Appeal. However, the result of the Appeal was
not yet available up to the date of the Annual Report of the Company,
which led to the uncertainties on the extent and financial impact arising
from the Litigation on the consolidated financial statement of the
Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 January 2022, the Company, Fujian Sanai Biotechnology Limited
(“Obligor 17), Fujian Zhixin Medicine Co., Limited (“Obligor 2”) (collectively
referred to as “Obligors”), and Mr. Zhi Shao Huan (“Subscriber 1”) and
Mr. Jiang Heng Guang (“Subscriber 2”) (collectively referred to as
“Subscribers”) entered into a subscription agreement relating to the
subscription of the convertible notes to be issued by the Company in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$72,000,000 at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.119 per share (“Convertible Notes”). The interest rate is
3% per annum payable on a semi-annual basis and the maturity date is
the date of the first anniversary of the issue date.

The Company will execute the share charges of the entire issued share
capital of Sanai BVI and each of Obligors will execute the charge to be
executed by the Obligors in favour of the Subscribers over the bank
accounts in the name of the Obligors as a continuing security for
payment and discharge of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Notes and performance by the Company pursuant to the
subscription agreement.

On 9 February 2022, the Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$72,000,000 were issued to the Subscribers. The net
proceeds from the subscription of the Convertible Notes, after deduction
of expenses, are approximately HK$71,700,000. Please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 13 January 2022, 26 January 2022,
31 January 2022 and 9 February 2022 for further details.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the directors on 29 March 2022.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

RESULTS

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Other income and other gain, net
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other loss on assets

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operation
(Loss)/profit for the year from
discontinued operation

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

— (Loss)/profit from continuing operations
— (Loss)/profit from discontinued operation

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests
— (Loss)/profit from continuing operations

ES

Year ended 31 December

HETZA=1+—-HIFE

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests 312 I # % FE 15 &5 18 =

Loss attributable to owners
of the Company

Dividend paid

(Loss)/earnings per share
— from continuing and discontinued
operations

— from continuing operations

— from discontinued operation

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
T —+F —TN\F “TNEF ZTCTHF —B--f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETT AR®TT
(Restated)
(&31)
BECEEK
s 62,534 58,024 81,854 121,404 67,608
HEKA (119,311) (51,243) (79,742) (90,4893) (27,053)
£/ (E8) (56,777) 6,781 2,112 30,921 40,555
AN R E e AR 1,803 9,383 2,678 799 777
VoK LN (4,739) (52) (248) (2,909) (638)
THER (39,528) (28,449) (25,602) (11,933) (15,085)
BEEMER (922,920) (5,561) (18,970) (225) (109)
BT AR (12,695) (60) ©7) = =
MBAT(B518), % (1,034,856) (17,958) (40,057) 16,653 25,500
FigBiEe,/ (%) (116,888) 3,678 444 (6,161) (8,625)
BERSERENSR (1,151,744) (14,280) (39,613) 11,492 16,875
BRIEEK
DRIEEBFA(EE)BF
= (215,475) 148,093 = =
ER(FR)BF (1,151,744) (229,755) 108,480 11,492 16,875
THALER:
NG 2PN
— BEGLER (FR) 57 (1,151,744) (14,280) (39,141) 6,422 9,025
— BRIEER (B1B) /%7 - (215,475) 148,093 = =
AAFEE AL (F8)5H
(1,151,744) (229,755) 108,952 6,422 9,025
FEE R
— BEGEER (FR) /&7 - - (472) 5,070 7,850
= (472) 5,070 7,850
AATEEAEEFSE
(1,151,744) (229,755) 108,480 11,492 16,875
BERBRE - - - = =
SR (H58E)BF
-~ BECERBRIEES
RMB(47.8) cents RMB(7.7)cents ~ RMB3.5cents  RMB0.2 cents RMBO0.3 cents
ARB@478n AR¥I7)S  AREISS AR¥029 AR¥03%
— BEEEEK RMB(47.8) cents  RMB(0.5) cents  RMB(1.3)cents ~ RMB0.2 cents ~ RMBO.3 cents
AR¥@r8n  AR®057 ARE{13%  ARK02H  AR¥03%
— BRIEER - RMB(7.2)cents  RMB4.8 cents = -
AR®(7.2)5 AR¥E485
EEREE
As at 31 December
®W+=A=+—-H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—tF —T-)\F —T-NEF ZToTE —B--F
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AREFT ARETT AR®EFT AREFT ARETR
BEE 531,052 365,730 253,370 290,650 311,237
BEE (311,827) (294,208) (65,804) (89,125) (91,686)
BE%E 219,225 71,527 187,566 201,525 219,551
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